
 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

01/07/2025 10:00 AM  
 

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 
 

AGENDA 
 

This meeting will be held in person ONLY and the public is welcome to attend. 
 

For additional information or supporting documents please contact the  
Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969. 

                                      
JAY CARMONA 
CHAIRMAN 
 
CLAY MITCHELL 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
DONALD GILMAN 
COMMISSIONER 

ANNE LANGER 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 

JIM HINDLE 
CLERK-TREASURER 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for 
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Health Board, Storey County Brothel 
License Board, Storey County Water and Sewer System Board, Storey County Highway Board and 
the Storey County Liquor and Licensing Board and during this meeting may convene as any of 
those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda. All matters listed under the 
consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board of County 
Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or 
any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted upon 
separately during this meeting.  Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be 
taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and 
the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the 
agenda at any time.  The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time allotted for each 
individual to speak.  Public comment is limited to three minutes per individual. 
 
All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless 
marked otherwise. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M. 

 
2. CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 



4. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Election of Chairman to the Storey County Board of Commissioners for the term 
of one year in compliance with NRS 244.070 and County Code 2.04.008.  

 
5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Election of Vice-Chairman to the Storey County Board of Commissioners for the 
term of one year in compliance with NRS 244.070 and County Code 2.04.008.
  

6. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)  Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and end 
of each meeting. These comments are limited to matters not on today’s agenda. Public 
comment will also be allowed during each agenda item upon which action will be taken. 
These comments must be limited to the item on the agenda. Public comment is limited to 
three minutes per individual, with discretion of the board chair.  
 

7. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the January 7, 2025, 
meeting.  

 
8. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 
I For possible action, approval of business license first readings: 

A. Apollo Mechanical Contractors– General / 2400 Peru Dr. ~  
            McCarran, NV 
B. Erthos Manufacturing LLC – Out of County / 740 S. Mill Ave. Ste. 210 ~  
            Tempe, AZ 
C. Erthos Partner Services LLC – Out of County / 740 S. Mill Ave. Ste. 210 ~  
            Tempe, AZ 
D. Honeywell International Inc. – Out of County / 715 Peachtree St. ~ 
            N.E. Atlanta, GA 
E. KAWM Group LLC – Contractor / 1426 Foothill Rd. ~ Reno, NV 
F. Mazak Optonics Corporation – Out of County / 2725 Galvin Ct. ~ 
            Elgin, IL 
G. McCuan Metals Inc. – Contractor / 1320 High Chaparral Dr. ~ Reno, NV 
H. Precision Fitness Training, LLC – Home Based / 4680 Hanaupah Rd. ~  
            Reno, NV 
I.          Silicon Valley Mechanical, Inc. – Contractor / 2115 Ringwood Ave. ~ 
            San Jose, CA  

 
II 24-25 Property Tax bill correction in the amount of ($153.21) for parcel 3-431-02.  

Concrete was picked up during the 2024-25 reappraisal and it is personal 
property non taxable pavers.  Resulting in a reduction in taxes of $153.21.  

 
III Approval of claims in the amount of $19,747,408.93.  

 
 
 



9. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Resolution No. 25-756 honoring retired Storey County Commissioner Lance 
Gilman for his 12 years of service to the residents and businesses of Storey 
County.  

 
10. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

BOARD 
 
11. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Badge pinning ceremony for Battalion Chief Bryce Montoya and Fire Captain 
Matt Dixon, after successfully completing their promotional probationary 
period.  

 
12. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
13. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports 

 
14. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment) 

 
15. 10:30 A.M. PUBLIC HEARING: 

  
Public hearing to consider public comments on proposed lease of that portion of 
Piper's Opera House known as the Old Corner Bar to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC 
for a monthly rental amount of $1,800.00 until December 31, 2025, with a two-
year renewal term. Changes to the lease that was approved on January 2, 2024, 
include the removal of the requirement that the Ponderosa Saloon pay utilities; 
35% of the monthly electric billing and $50 for water service.  

 
16. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible action to approve a revised lease for the Old Corner 
Bar located in Piper’s Opera House with Ponderosa Saloon LLC. The proposed 
revision includes the removal of the electrical and water payments requirement 
in Section 3.02, while continuing the monthly rental of $1,800 per month until 
December 31, 2025, with possible two-year renewal.  

 
17. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to rescind the July 18, 2023, approved 
agreement between Storey County and Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old Corner 
Bar) pertaining to monthly payments of back utility payments.  

 
 
 
 
 



18. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible action to approve a refund of electrical and water 
payments, past and current made by Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old Corner Bar) 
with the updated lease and rescinding of the past due agreement in the amount 
of $11,077.53.  

 
19. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of unbudgeted grant-funded, Health 
Community Worker Position for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year.  

 
20. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 24-755, a resolution 
setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution 
per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year 
and superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County 
employees with the addition of Community Health Worker Grade 116 and the 
reallocation of Senior Services Director to Health & Community Services 
Director Grade 152.  

 
21. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to sign and 
approve the cost reimbursement agreement between Storey County and the 
Bureau of Land Management - Carson City District Office (BLM) for the 
processing of the right-of-way application for the Lead Siphon Project. Work 
under this agreement will not exceed $10,100.  

 
22. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

BOARD 
 
23. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to make a conditional offer to purchase the 
property located at 300 Italy Drive in McCarren Nevada, APN 005-091-67, based 
upon the appraisal dated November 13, 2024, by Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA 
Certified General Appraiser, including approval of opening escrow, and 
completing a title search, not to exceed $3,800,000 and approximately $280,000 
in applicable closing costs.  

 
24. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Discussion and possible approval to utilize available funds from the Capital 
Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer that were not budgeted for 
in the FY 2024 budget, but outlined in the district CIP, not to exceed $300,000. 
 
  



25. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD 
 
26. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout 
Storey County.  

 
27. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
28. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Possible acceptance of a bid for replacement of fuel tanks and pumps at 100 Toll 
Road and 1705 Peru Drive, from LA Perks Petroleum, in the amount of 
$686,007.00.  The acceptance of this bid will allow staff to issue a Notice of Intent 
to Award to the apparent low bidder and solicit a contract for construction for 
legal review.  Upon legal approval, the contract will be brought before this 
board for approval.  

 
29. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
For Consideration and possible approval of acceptance of the 2024 Winter Grant 
round from the Nevada State Off Highway Vehicles Commission for the grant 
amount of $28,065.78 for the Storey County Sheriff's Office, Off Highway 
Vehicle Operations Unit.  

 
30. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
For Consideration and possible approval of receipt of a donation for the Storey 
County Sheriff's Office for the purchase of a traffic unit for patrol, emergency 
response and community outreach.  

 
31. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval authorizing the County Manager to sign 
and approve an amendment to an existing 2024-2025 contract between Storey 
County and Silver State Government Relations for lobbying and government 
affairs services during the Nevada legislative interim and general sessions for 
$6,500 per month effective July 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024, and $10,000 
per month effective January 1, 2025, through June 30, 2025.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



32. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible authorization for the County Manager to sign and 
approve a contract from 01/07/25 through 12/31/25 between Storey County 
and Sam Shad Productions producing and airing with Nevada Newsmakers a 
series of television commercials, website banners and links, audio and video 
podcasts and Youtube clips, and social media outreach programs for a total cost 
of $200,000 as specified in the attached draft contract and scope of work, with an 
audience focus toward Nevada legislative officials and state, county, and local 
leadership.  

 
33. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Possible approval amending the list of county appointments to serve on state, 
county, and regional boards and committees, and filling vacancies on the 
Virginia City Tourism Commission for the 2025 calendar year.  

 
34. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner 
to serve a term representing Precincts 3 & 6 Lockwood and River Districts, on 
the Storey County Planning Commission.  

 
35. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner 
to serve a term representing Precinct 5 Virginia City Highlands District, on the 
Storey County Planning Commission.  

 
36. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner 
to serve a term representing Precinct 1 Virginia City District, on the Storey 
County Planning Commission.  

 
37. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner 
to serve the remainder of a term for County At Large position on the Storey 
County Planning Commission.  

 
38. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner 
to serve a term representing the County At Large position on the Storey County 
Planning Commission.  

 
 
 



39. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings: 
A. A.C. Moate Industries, Inc – Contractor / 180 Gentry Way ~ Reno, NV 
B. ARCO DB Companies, Inc. - Contractor / 325 S. Alabama St. Ste 200 ~  
            Indianapolis, IN 
C. Bighorn Roofing LTD – Contractor / 2090 Rabbit Dr. ~ 
            Washoe Valley, NV 
D. Budget Blinds of Reno – Out of County / 6550 Longley Ln. #115 ~ 
            Reno, NV 
E. Deluxe Step and Rail Inc. – Contractor / 1995 Tampa St. ~ Reno, NV 
F. Diamond G Construction Inc. – Contractor /  
            340 W. Wickenburg Way Ste. A34 ~ Wickenburg, AZ 
G. Highline Electric LLC – Contractor / 8030 Monterey Shores Dr. ~ 
            Reno, NV 
H. Mason Valley Janitorial – Out of County / 8 Van Fleet Dr. ~ 
            Yerington, NV 
I. NGK Electronics USA, Inc. – Out of County / 5975 Home Gardens Dr. ~ 
            Reno, NV 
J. Precision Firearms Training – Home Based / 4682 Hanaupah Rd. ~  
            Reno, NV 
K. Pure Water Systems of NV – Contractor / 245 Vine St. ~ Reno, NV 
L. SOKAB LLC – Home Based / 1700 Main St. ~ Gold Hill, NV 
M.       WSP USA INC – Professional / 4139Oregon Pike ~ Ephrata, PA  

 
40. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)  Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and end 

of each meeting. These comments are limited to matters not on today’s agenda. Public 
comment will also be allowed during each agenda item upon which action will be taken. 
These comments must be limited to the item on the agenda. Public comment is limited to 
three minutes per individual, with discretion of the board chair.  
 

41. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA 
 
NOTICE: 

• Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings. 
• Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding 

the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969. 
• Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear. 
• Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited 

to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon 
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the 
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the 
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes. 

• Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color, 
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin. 

• In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil 
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and 
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from 



discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including 
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, 
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for 
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all 
bases apply to all programs).  Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or 
incident. 
Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program 
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact 
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or 
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339.  Additionally, program 
information may be made available in languages other than English.  
To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination 
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at 
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a 
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.  
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992.  Submit your completed form or 
letter to USDA by:  
 
(1) mail:  U.S. Department of Agriculture  
                 Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights  

           1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
           Washington, D.C. 20250-9410.  
 

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or  
 
(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.  
 
USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender. 
 

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special 
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in 
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440. 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 

I, Drema Smith,  Administrative Assistant to Storey County, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused 
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 1/02/2025;  Storey County 
Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N 
C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, 
VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.  
This agenda was also posted to the Nevada State website at https://notice.nv.gov/ and to the Storey 
County website at: https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter  
 
 
By ______________________________________ 
    Drema Smith 
    Administrative Assistant II           

 

mailto:program.intake@usda.gov
https://notice.nv.gov/
https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter


Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Election of Chairman to the Storey County Board of Commissioners for the term
of one year in compliance with NRS 244.070 and County Code 2.04.008.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to elect __________ as Chairman to
the Storey County Board of Commissioners for the term of one year in compliance with
NRS 244.070 and County Code 2.04.008.

• Prepared by: Drema S Smith

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: Elect Chair

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       4



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Election of Vice-Chairman to the Storey County Board of Commissioners for the
term of one year in compliance with NRS 244.070 and County Code 2.04.008.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to elect ____________ as Vice-
Chairman to the Storey County Board of Commissioners for the term of one year in
compliance with NRS 244.070 and County Code 2.04.008.

• Prepared by: Drema S Smith

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: Elect Chair

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       5



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the January 7, 2025,
meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Drema S Smith

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      7



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
• A. Apollo Mechanical Contractors– General / 2400 Peru Dr. ~ McCarran, NV
• B. Erthos Manufacturing LLC – Out of County / 740 S. Mill Ave. Ste. 210 ~ Tempe, AZ
• C. Erthos Partner Services LLC – Out of County / 740 S. Mill Ave. Ste. 210 ~ Tempe,

AZ
• D. Honeywell International Inc. – Out of County / 715 Peachtree St. ~ N.E. Atlanta, GA
• E. KAWM Group LLC – Contractor / 1426 Foothill Rd. ~ Reno, NV
• F. Mazak Optonics Corporation – Out of County / 2725 Galvin Ct. ~ Elgin, IL
• G. McCuan Metals Inc. – Contractor / 1320 High Chaparral Dr. ~ Reno, NV
• H. Precision Fitness Training, LLC – Home Based / 4680 Hanaupah Rd. ~ Reno, NV
• I. Silicon Valley Mechanical, Inc. – Contractor / 2115 Ringwood Ave. ~ San Jose, CA

• Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I
move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 7758470966

• Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioner's meeting for approval.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      8  I



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office December 23, 2024 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the January 7, 2025 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

FIRST READINGS: 

A. Apollo Mechanical Contractors– General / 2400 Peru Dr. ~ McCarran, NV

B. Erthos Manufacturing LLC – Out of County / 740 S. Mill Ave. Ste. 210 ~ Tempe, AZ

C. Erthos Partner Services LLC – Out of County / 740 S. Mill Ave. Ste. 210 ~ Tempe, AZ

D. Honeywell International Inc. – Out of County / 715 Peachtree St. ~ N.E. Atlanta, GA

E. KAWM Group LLC – Contractor / 1426 Foothill Rd. ~ Reno, NV

F. Mazak Optonics Corporation – Out of County / 2725 Galvin Ct. ~ Elgin, IL

G. McCuan Metals Inc. – Contractor / 1320 High Chaparral Dr. ~ Reno, NV

H. Precision Fitness Training, LLC – Home Based / 4680 Hanaupah Rd. ~ Reno, NV

I. Silicon Valley Mechanical, Inc. – Contractor / 2115 Ringwood Ave. ~ San Jose, CA

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: 24-25 Property Tax bill correction in the amount of ($153.21) for parcel 3-431-02.
Concrete was picked up during the 2024-25 reappraisal and it is personal property non
taxable pavers.  Resulting in a reduction in taxes of $153.21.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve the reduction of the 24-25
tax bill for parcel 3-431-02.

• Prepared by: Jana Seddon

Department: Assessor     Contact Number: 775-847-0961

• Staff Summary: 24-25 Property Tax bill correction in the amount of ($153.21) for parcel
3-431-02.  Concrete was picked up during the 2024-25 reappraisal and it is personal
property non taxable pavers.  Resulting in a reduction in taxes of $153.21.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

     8  II







Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0 min

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Approval of claims in the amount of $19,747,408.93.

• Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

• Prepared by: Cory Y Wood

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: Please find attached claims.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

    8  III









































































































Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Resolution No. 25-756 honoring retired Storey County Commissioner Lance
Gilman for his 12 years of service to the residents and businesses of Storey County.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to approve Resolution No. 25-756
honoring retired Storey County Commissioner Lance Gilman for his 12 years of service
to the residents and businesses of Storey County.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: Commissioner Lance Gilman has retired following three consecutive
terms (12 years) serving as Storey County Commissioner and is hereby being recognized
for his years of service and dedication to the residents and businesses of our county.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       9



RESOLUTION NO. ___25-756___

A RESOLUTION HONORING  
COMMISSIONER LANCE GILMAN 

A Resolution Honoring COMMISSIONER LANCE GILMAN, 

WHEREAS, LANCE GILMAN faithfully served Storey County for twelve (12) years 
from January 7, 2013, to January 6, 2025; and 

WHEREAS, LANCE GILMAN has been dedicated to his job and the citizens of Storey 
County, and 

WHEREAS, LANCE GILMAN has served with distinction, earning the respect of all he 
worked with both locally and statewide; and 

WHEREAS, LANCE GILMAN’s professional skills as County Commissioner and 
several other capacities have served to make Storey County a better place to live, work, 
and play. 

THEREFORE IT BE KNOWN to all present that the Board of County Commissioners of 
Storey County do hereby resolve to commend and honor LANCE GILMAN for 
exemplary service to the people of Storey County, Nevada this 7th day of January, 2025. 

PASSED and ADOPTED the 7th day of January 2025, by the following: 

AYES:  _______________________ 

_______________________ 

_______________________ 

NAYS:  ____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

ABSTAINS: ____________________ 

ABSENT: ____________________ 

Attest:  ________ 
 Jim Hindle, Storey County Clerk-Treasurer 

dsmith
Inserted Text
25-



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 Minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Badge pinning ceremony for Battalion Chief Bryce Montoya and Fire Captain Matt
Dixon, after successfully completing their promotional probationary period.

• Recommended motion: No Motion Required

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire     Contact Number: 775-847-0954

• Staff Summary: In keeping with fire service tradition, a badge pinning ceremony and,
when applicable, the recitation of the oath serves to honor the achievements of our
personnel and publicly acknowledge their accomplishments. It is customary for a spouse,
significant other, family member, or friend to have the honor of pinning the new badge
on the recently promoted or newly hired member. Battalion Chief Bryce Montoya and
Fire Captain Matt Dixon have completed their promotional probationary period and are
now officially promoted as a permanent Battalion Chief and Fire Captain. This ceremony
recognizes his dedication and the completion of this significant milestone in their careers.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

     11



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Public hearing to consider public comments on proposed lease of that portion of
Piper's Opera House known as the Old Corner Bar to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC for a
monthly rental amount of $1,800.00 until December 31, 2025, with a two-year renewal
term. Changes to the lease that was approved on January 2, 2024, include the removal of
the requirement that the Ponderosa Saloon pay utilities; 35% of the monthly electric
billing and $50 for water service.

• Recommended motion: No Motion.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: Following the recent approval of the new lease for Divide Fitness LLC,
which continues to include no payment for utilities, Ponderosa Saloon LLC (Old Corner
Bar) has requested an amendment to their lease to remove the electrical and water utility
payments in Section 3.02. Staff is presenting to the board the possibility of granting this
request as it will maintain consistency in the County’s commercial leases agreements.

• The only other change to the lease is in the opening paragraph which now states the
following, “Updated this ____ day of December, 2024 with all changes retroactive to the
initial commencement date of the lease, December 2023.”  All other sections of the lease
will remain unchanged.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

        15



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued













LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ("Lease") is made and entered into by and between VC 
Ponderosa Saloon LLC; (dba Old Corner Bar) ("Lessee"), and Storey County, a political subdivision 
of the State of Nevada ("Lessor") this ___day of December, 2023 (its effective date). Updated this 
____ day of October, December 2024 with all changes retroactive to the initial commencement 
date of the lease, December 2023.

ARTICLE I - LEASED PREMISES

Section 1.01. Leased Premises. The term "Leased Premises" means Landlord is leasing to Lessee, 
the following premises named the "Old Corner Bar" located Piper's Opera House 12 North B St
Virginia City, NV 89440. Specifically, Lessee is leasing: (1)The bar area; (2) Storage area in back of 
bar; (3) Restrooms; and (4) Utility room

Section 1.02. Demise of Leased Premises. LESSOR hereby leases to LESSEE, and LESSEE hereby 
leases from LESSOR, the Leased Premises, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease.

ARTICLE II - TERM

Section 2.01. Effective Date. The effective date of the Lease ("Effective Date") will be as set forth 
above under Lease Agreement.

Section 2.02. Term. The term of this Lease will be for a period of up to two years subject to earlier 
termination by Lessee upon 30 days notice to Lessor and commencing on the Effective Date and 
ending two years from the Effective Date; The lease is renewable for an additional 2 years and is 
automatically renewed unless a notice of termination in writing is provided at least 90 days prior 
to the expiration of the initial term. Either party may terminate this lease at any time upon 
providing written notice of the termination 90 days in advance of the termination.

ARTICLE Ill - RENTAL AND RELATED CHARGES

Section 3.01. Rent. LESSEE shall pay to LESSOR as rent for the Leased Premises, the sum set of 
ONE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,800.00) per month. Rent is due the first day of 
every month for the upcoming month. A late fee of 5% of the monthly rental will be charged for 
all rental payments made later than the 15th day of any month. 

All rent and other sums payable to LESSOR under this Lease shall be paid to LESSOR at LESSOR's 
address for notices under this Lease or to such other person or at such other place as LESSOR 
may from time to time designate in writing.

Section 3.02. Utilities. LESSEE will pay $50.00 per month for water directly to LESSOR. LESSEE will 
pay no propane. LESSEE will pay 35% of electric bill. LESSEE shall pay for bar phone service. cable 
and satellite radio for bar use.



Article IV -  USE AND MAINTENANCE

Section 4.01 Use of Property. LESSEE’S use of the property shall be to provide bar services, 
liquor sales, snack and food services and music and entertainment in and about Piper’s Opera 
House. LESSEE must request in writing and obtain prior approval to use the Lobby area of the 
property using a form provided by LESSOR.

Section 4.02 Improvements. LESSEE may make alterations and improvements to the premises 
after obtaining LESSOR’S written consent. At any time before this lease ends, LESSEE may 
remove any of LESSEE’S alterations and improvements, as long as LESSEE repairs any damage 
caused by attaching the items to or removing them from the premises. At the conclusion of the 
lease, the LESSOR, at its discretion, may require the LESSEE to remove any alterations and/or 
improvements LESSEE made to the property.  Written consent is not required for decorating 
purposes i.e.: pictures.

Section 4.03 Maintenance. LESSOR will maintain and make all necessary repairs to the 
following parts of the building in which the leased premises are located: Roof; Foundation and 
structural components; Exterior walls; Interior walls; Exterior doors and windows; Plumbing 
system; Sewage disposal; and electrical system. LESSEE will maintain the leased premises and 
keep in good condition except those specified above as being LESSOR'S responsibility.

ARTICLE V – INSURANCE

Section 5.01 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Lessee shall procure and maintain for the duration 
of  the Lease, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may 
arise from or in connection with this Lease.

The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Lease and in no way 
limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Lease.  The LESSOR in no way warrants that the 
minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the LESSEE from liabilities that might 
arise out of this Lease. LESSEE is free to purchase such additional insurance as Lessee 
determines necessary. 

Section 5.02 MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE.  Lessee shall provide coverage 
with limits of liability not less than those stated below.  An excess liability policy or umbrella 
liability policy may be used to meet the minimum liability requirements provided that the 
coverage is written on a “following form” basis.

A. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability
coverage.

• General Aggregate $2,000,000



• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000
• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000
• Each Occurrence $1,000,000
• Fire Damage (Damage to Rented Premises) $100,000

The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language:  
"Storey County shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising 
out of the use and/or occupancy of the property subject to this Lease."

B. Property Insurance
Coverage for Lessee's tenant improvements Replacement Value
Coverage on building (required if Lessee is sole occupant) Replacement Value

a. Property insurance shall be written on an all risk, replacement cost
coverage, including coverage for flood and earth movement.
b. The State of Nevada shall be named as a loss payee on property coverage
for tenant improvements.
c. If property coverage on the building is required, "Storey County shall be
named as a loss payee".
d. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the Storey County.

Section 5.03 ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be 
endorsed to include, the following provisions: 1) On insurance policies where the Storey County  
is named as an additional insured, the Storey County shall be an additional insured to the full 
limits of liability purchased by the Lessee even if those limits of liability are in excess of those 
required by this Lease.  2) The LESSEE's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-
contributory with respect to all other available sources.

 Section 5.04 NOTICE OF CANCELLATION.  Any contract for insurance for each insurance policy 
required by the insurance provisions of this Contract shall not be suspended, voided or 
canceled except after providing thirty (30) days prior written notice been given to the Storey 
County, except when cancellation is for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior 
notice may be given.  Such notice shall be sent directly to LESSOR.  Should LESSEE fail to provide 
State timely notice, LESSEE will be considered in breach and subject to cure provisions set forth 
within this contract.

Section 5.05 ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS. Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed 
or authorized to do business in the state of Nevada and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less 
than A- VII.  Storey County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating 
is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency.

Section 5.06 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE.  LESSEE shall furnish the LESSOR with certificates of 
insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the LESSOR) as required by this Lease.  The 



certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf.

All certificates and any required endorsements are to be received and approved by the State 
before the Lease commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Lease must be in effect at 
or prior to commencement of this Lease and remain in effect for the duration of the Lease.  
Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Lease or to provide evidence of 
renewal is a material breach of contract.

All certificates required by this Lease shall be sent directly LESSOR.  The State reserves the right 
to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies and endorsements required by this 
Lease at any time.  

Section 5.07 APPROVAL.  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this 
Lease must have prior approval from the LESSOR, whose decision shall be final. Such action will 
not require a formal lease amendment, but may be made by administrative action.

VI. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 6.01 Taxes. LESSEE will pay all personal property taxes levied and assessed against 
Tenant's personal property as well as the value of the lease as calculated and required by NRS 
361.257; 361.227 and 361.2275. LESSOR is responsible for all personal and real property taxes 
levied and assesses against LESSOR's personal property and real property.

Section 6.02 Damage to Premises. If the premises are damaged through fire or other cause not 
the fault of LESSEE, LESSEE will owe no rent for any period during which LESSEE is substantially 
deprived of the use of premises. Loss of revenue by LESSEE will be subtracted from monthly 
rent until loss is repaid to tenant in full. If LESSEE is substantially deprived of the use of the 
premises for more than 90 days because of such damage, LESSEE may terminate lease by 
written notice of termination to LESSOR. Upon termination of the lease by either LESSEE or 
LESSOR no further obligation for loss of use is required.

SECTION 6.03 Quiet Enjoyment.  As long as LESSEE is not in default under the terms of this 
lease. LESSEE will have the right to occupy the premises peacefully and without interference.

Section 6.04 Disputes. If a dispute arises, the parties will try in good faith to settle it through 
mediation conducted by a mediator to be mutually selected. The parties will share the costs of 
the mediator equally. Each Party will cooperate fully and fairly with mediator and will attempt 
to reach a mutually satisfactory compromise to the dispute. If the dispute is not resolved within 
30 days after it is referred to the mediator, either party may take the matter to arbitration 
before an arbitrator mutually selected by the parties .

Section 6.05 Entire Agreement.  This is the entire agreement between the parties. It replaces 
and supersedes any and all oral agreements between the parties, as well as any prior writings.



Section 6.06 Notices: All notices must be writing. A notice may be delivered to a party at the 
address that follows a Party’s signature or to a new address that a party designates in writing. A 
notice may be delivered in person, by certified mail or by overnight courier.

Section 6.07 Governing Laws: This lease will be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Nevada.

Section 6.08 Modification: This lease may be modified only by a written agreement signed by 
all the parties.

Section 6.09 Waiver. If one party waives any term or provision of this lease at any time, that 
waiver will be effective only for the specific instance and specific purpose for which the waiver 
was given. If either party fails to exercise or delays exercising any of its rights or remedies under 
this lease, that party retains the right to enforce that term or provision at a later time.

Section 6.10 Severability. If any court determines that any provision of this lease is invalid or 
unenforceable, any invalidity or unenforceable will affect only that provision and will not make 
any other provision of this lease invalid or unenforceable and shall be modified, amended or 
limited only to extent necessary to render it valid and enforceable.

Dated this ________ day of _______,2023.

____________________________________
Tamara Migan, Managing Member

____________________________________
William Migan Jr. Managing Member

Dated this _________ day of _______, 2023

____________________________________
Jay Carmona, Chairman Storey County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

__________________________
Jim Hindle Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible action to approve a revised lease for the Old Corner
Bar located in Piper’s Opera House with Ponderosa Saloon LLC. The proposed revision
includes the removal of the electrical and water payments requirement in Section 3.02,
while continuing the monthly rental of $1,800 per month until December 31, 2025, with
possible two-year renewal.

• Recommended motion: I, Commissioner _______, move to approve a revised lease for
the Old Corner Bar located in Piper’s Opera House with Ponderosa Saloon LLC. The
proposed revision includes the removal of the electrical and water payments requirement
in Section 3.02, while continuing the monthly rental of $1,800 per month until December
31, 2025, with a possible two-year renewal.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: Following the recent approval of the new lease for Divide Fitness LLC,
which continues to include no payment for utilities, Ponderosa Saloon LLC (Old Corner
Bar) has requested an amendment to their lease to remove the electrical and water utility
payments in Section 3.02. Staff is presenting to the board the possibility of granting this
request as it will maintain consistency in the County’s commercial leases agreements.

• The only other change to the lease is in the opening paragraph which now states the
following, “Updated this ____ day of December 2024 with all changes retroactive to the
initial commencement date of the lease, December 2023.”.  All other sections of the lease
will remain unchanged.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

      16



____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued













LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ("Lease") is made and entered into by and between VC 
Ponderosa Saloon LLC; (dba Old Corner Bar) ("Lessee"), and Storey County, a political subdivision 
of the State of Nevada ("Lessor") this ___day of December, 2023 (its effective date). Updated this 
____ day of October, December 2024 with all changes retroactive to the initial commencement 
date of the lease, December 2023.

ARTICLE I - LEASED PREMISES

Section 1.01. Leased Premises. The term "Leased Premises" means Landlord is leasing to Lessee, 
the following premises named the "Old Corner Bar" located Piper's Opera House 12 North B St
Virginia City, NV 89440. Specifically, Lessee is leasing: (1)The bar area; (2) Storage area in back of 
bar; (3) Restrooms; and (4) Utility room

Section 1.02. Demise of Leased Premises. LESSOR hereby leases to LESSEE, and LESSEE hereby 
leases from LESSOR, the Leased Premises, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease.

ARTICLE II - TERM

Section 2.01. Effective Date. The effective date of the Lease ("Effective Date") will be as set forth 
above under Lease Agreement.

Section 2.02. Term. The term of this Lease will be for a period of up to two years subject to earlier 
termination by Lessee upon 30 days notice to Lessor and commencing on the Effective Date and 
ending two years from the Effective Date; The lease is renewable for an additional 2 years and is 
automatically renewed unless a notice of termination in writing is provided at least 90 days prior 
to the expiration of the initial term. Either party may terminate this lease at any time upon 
providing written notice of the termination 90 days in advance of the termination.

ARTICLE Ill - RENTAL AND RELATED CHARGES

Section 3.01. Rent. LESSEE shall pay to LESSOR as rent for the Leased Premises, the sum set of 
ONE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,800.00) per month. Rent is due the first day of 
every month for the upcoming month. A late fee of 5% of the monthly rental will be charged for 
all rental payments made later than the 15th day of any month. 

All rent and other sums payable to LESSOR under this Lease shall be paid to LESSOR at LESSOR's 
address for notices under this Lease or to such other person or at such other place as LESSOR 
may from time to time designate in writing.

Section 3.02. Utilities. LESSEE will pay $50.00 per month for water directly to LESSOR. LESSEE will 
pay no propane. LESSEE will pay 35% of electric bill. LESSEE shall pay for bar phone service. cable 
and satellite radio for bar use.



Article IV -  USE AND MAINTENANCE

Section 4.01 Use of Property. LESSEE’S use of the property shall be to provide bar services, 
liquor sales, snack and food services and music and entertainment in and about Piper’s Opera 
House. LESSEE must request in writing and obtain prior approval to use the Lobby area of the 
property using a form provided by LESSOR.

Section 4.02 Improvements. LESSEE may make alterations and improvements to the premises 
after obtaining LESSOR’S written consent. At any time before this lease ends, LESSEE may 
remove any of LESSEE’S alterations and improvements, as long as LESSEE repairs any damage 
caused by attaching the items to or removing them from the premises. At the conclusion of the 
lease, the LESSOR, at its discretion, may require the LESSEE to remove any alterations and/or 
improvements LESSEE made to the property.  Written consent is not required for decorating 
purposes i.e.: pictures.

Section 4.03 Maintenance. LESSOR will maintain and make all necessary repairs to the 
following parts of the building in which the leased premises are located: Roof; Foundation and 
structural components; Exterior walls; Interior walls; Exterior doors and windows; Plumbing 
system; Sewage disposal; and electrical system. LESSEE will maintain the leased premises and 
keep in good condition except those specified above as being LESSOR'S responsibility.

ARTICLE V – INSURANCE

Section 5.01 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Lessee shall procure and maintain for the duration 
of  the Lease, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may 
arise from or in connection with this Lease.

The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Lease and in no way 
limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Lease.  The LESSOR in no way warrants that the 
minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the LESSEE from liabilities that might 
arise out of this Lease. LESSEE is free to purchase such additional insurance as Lessee 
determines necessary. 

Section 5.02 MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE.  Lessee shall provide coverage 
with limits of liability not less than those stated below.  An excess liability policy or umbrella 
liability policy may be used to meet the minimum liability requirements provided that the 
coverage is written on a “following form” basis.

A. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability
coverage.

• General Aggregate $2,000,000



• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000
• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000
• Each Occurrence $1,000,000
• Fire Damage (Damage to Rented Premises) $100,000

The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language:  
"Storey County shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising 
out of the use and/or occupancy of the property subject to this Lease."

B. Property Insurance
Coverage for Lessee's tenant improvements Replacement Value
Coverage on building (required if Lessee is sole occupant) Replacement Value

a. Property insurance shall be written on an all risk, replacement cost
coverage, including coverage for flood and earth movement.
b. The State of Nevada shall be named as a loss payee on property coverage
for tenant improvements.
c. If property coverage on the building is required, "Storey County shall be
named as a loss payee".
d. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the Storey County.

Section 5.03 ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be 
endorsed to include, the following provisions: 1) On insurance policies where the Storey County  
is named as an additional insured, the Storey County shall be an additional insured to the full 
limits of liability purchased by the Lessee even if those limits of liability are in excess of those 
required by this Lease.  2) The LESSEE's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-
contributory with respect to all other available sources.

 Section 5.04 NOTICE OF CANCELLATION.  Any contract for insurance for each insurance policy 
required by the insurance provisions of this Contract shall not be suspended, voided or 
canceled except after providing thirty (30) days prior written notice been given to the Storey 
County, except when cancellation is for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior 
notice may be given.  Such notice shall be sent directly to LESSOR.  Should LESSEE fail to provide 
State timely notice, LESSEE will be considered in breach and subject to cure provisions set forth 
within this contract.

Section 5.05 ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS. Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed 
or authorized to do business in the state of Nevada and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less 
than A- VII.  Storey County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating 
is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency.

Section 5.06 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE.  LESSEE shall furnish the LESSOR with certificates of 
insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the LESSOR) as required by this Lease.  The 



certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf.

All certificates and any required endorsements are to be received and approved by the State 
before the Lease commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Lease must be in effect at 
or prior to commencement of this Lease and remain in effect for the duration of the Lease.  
Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Lease or to provide evidence of 
renewal is a material breach of contract.

All certificates required by this Lease shall be sent directly LESSOR.  The State reserves the right 
to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies and endorsements required by this 
Lease at any time.  

Section 5.07 APPROVAL.  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this 
Lease must have prior approval from the LESSOR, whose decision shall be final. Such action will 
not require a formal lease amendment, but may be made by administrative action.

VI. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 6.01 Taxes. LESSEE will pay all personal property taxes levied and assessed against 
Tenant's personal property as well as the value of the lease as calculated and required by NRS 
361.257; 361.227 and 361.2275. LESSOR is responsible for all personal and real property taxes 
levied and assesses against LESSOR's personal property and real property.

Section 6.02 Damage to Premises. If the premises are damaged through fire or other cause not 
the fault of LESSEE, LESSEE will owe no rent for any period during which LESSEE is substantially 
deprived of the use of premises. Loss of revenue by LESSEE will be subtracted from monthly 
rent until loss is repaid to tenant in full. If LESSEE is substantially deprived of the use of the 
premises for more than 90 days because of such damage, LESSEE may terminate lease by 
written notice of termination to LESSOR. Upon termination of the lease by either LESSEE or 
LESSOR no further obligation for loss of use is required.

SECTION 6.03 Quiet Enjoyment.  As long as LESSEE is not in default under the terms of this 
lease. LESSEE will have the right to occupy the premises peacefully and without interference.

Section 6.04 Disputes. If a dispute arises, the parties will try in good faith to settle it through 
mediation conducted by a mediator to be mutually selected. The parties will share the costs of 
the mediator equally. Each Party will cooperate fully and fairly with mediator and will attempt 
to reach a mutually satisfactory compromise to the dispute. If the dispute is not resolved within 
30 days after it is referred to the mediator, either party may take the matter to arbitration 
before an arbitrator mutually selected by the parties .

Section 6.05 Entire Agreement.  This is the entire agreement between the parties. It replaces 
and supersedes any and all oral agreements between the parties, as well as any prior writings.



Section 6.06 Notices: All notices must be writing. A notice may be delivered to a party at the 
address that follows a Party’s signature or to a new address that a party designates in writing. A 
notice may be delivered in person, by certified mail or by overnight courier.

Section 6.07 Governing Laws: This lease will be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Nevada.

Section 6.08 Modification: This lease may be modified only by a written agreement signed by 
all the parties.

Section 6.09 Waiver. If one party waives any term or provision of this lease at any time, that 
waiver will be effective only for the specific instance and specific purpose for which the waiver 
was given. If either party fails to exercise or delays exercising any of its rights or remedies under 
this lease, that party retains the right to enforce that term or provision at a later time.

Section 6.10 Severability. If any court determines that any provision of this lease is invalid or 
unenforceable, any invalidity or unenforceable will affect only that provision and will not make 
any other provision of this lease invalid or unenforceable and shall be modified, amended or 
limited only to extent necessary to render it valid and enforceable.

Dated this ________ day of _______,2023.

____________________________________
Tamara Migan, Managing Member

____________________________________
William Migan Jr. Managing Member

Dated this _________ day of _______, 2023

____________________________________
Jay Carmona, Chairman Storey County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

__________________________
Jim Hindle Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to rescind the July 18, 2023, approved
agreement between Storey County and Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old Corner Bar)
pertaining to monthly payments of back utility payments.

• Recommended motion: I, Commissioner, _____, move to approve to rescind the July
18, 2023, approved agreement between Storey County and Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old
Corner Bar) pertaining to monthly payments of back utility payments.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: On July 18, 2023, Storey County Commissioners approved an
agreement with Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old Corner Bar) to accept monthly payments
for back utility billings for the time period Feb 2019 through April 2023. The amount of
this agreement was $8,651.53 of which $6,650.00 has been paid.

• Following the recent approval of the new lease for Divide Fitness LLC, which continues
with no payment for utilities, the Old Corner Bar business owners requested, and staff is
presenting the option to the Board to cancel this agreement with Ponderosa Saloon, LLC.
This cancellation is suggested to maintain consistency in the County’s commercial leases
agreements.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      17



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued







Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible action to approve a refund of electrical and water
payments, past and current made by Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old Corner Bar) with the
updated lease and rescinding of the past due agreement in the amount of $11,077.53.

• Recommended motion: I, Commissioner _______, move to approve a refund of
electrical and water payments, past and current made by Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old
Corner Bar) with the updated lease and rescinding of the past due agreement in the
amount of $11,077.53.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: If the previous items are approved and the Ponderosa Saloon LLC (Old
Corner Bar) is no longer responsible for payment of electric and water utilities, staff is
presenting a recommendation that all prior payments are refunded as follows:

• • Electric utility payments made according to the agreement dated July 18, 2023,
$6,650.00

• • Electric utility payments made under the terms of the January 2024 lease amount
to $827.53.

• • Water utility payments from January 2019 through November 2024 in the amount
of $3,600.00.

• The results in a total refund of $11,077.53 to the Ponderosa Saloon LLC.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

       18



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Old Corner Bar Utility payments

Packet Description Period Past Electrical
Utilities

Current
Electrical
Utilities

FY22-23

GLPKT07319 PUBLIC WORKSMISC -  PONDEROSA ELECTRIC PUBLIC WORKS June/July 350.00
FY23-24

GLPKT07387 PUBLIC WORKS PONDEROSA ELECTRIC PUBLIC WORKS July 350.00
GLPKT07589 PUBLIC WORKS 001-36500 PONDO PUBLIC WORKS August 350.00
GLPKT07702 PUBLIC WORKS 001-36500 PONDO SALOON ELECT PUBLIC WORKS September 350.00
GLPKT07821 PUBLIC WORKS 001-36500 MISC PUBLIC WORKS October 350.00

GLPKT08051 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC ELECTRIC OCT VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC December 350.00
GLPKT08100 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC CORNER BAR ELECTRIC  VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC Nov/December 350.00
GLPKT08228 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC ELECTRIC FOR OCB VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC January 350.00
GLPKT08277 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC OCT 2023 POWER BILL VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC January 276.91
GLPKT08398 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC DEC 2023  POWER VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC February 283.02
GLPKT08398 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC ELECTRIC FOR OLD CORNER BAR VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC February 350.00
GLPKT08513 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC ELECTRIC FOR OCB VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC March 350.00
GLPKT08641 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC ELECTRIC FOR OCB VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC April 350.00
GLPKT08778 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC OCB ELECTRIC VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC May 350.00
GLPKT08938 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC OLD CORNER BAR ELECTRIC VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC June 350.00

4,550.00 559.93

FY24-25
GLPKT09131 VC PONDEROSA SALOON CORNER BAR ELECTRIC VC PONDEROSA SALOON July 350.00
GLPKT09199 VC PONDEROSA SALOON POWER BILL VC PONDEROSA SALOON July 267.60
GLPKT09360 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC RENTS - COUNTY BUILDINGS - ELECTRIC VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC August 350.00
GLPKT09495 VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC RENTS - COUNTY BUILDINGS - Electric VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC September 350.00
GLPKT09620 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC RENTS - COUNTY BUILDINGS VC PONDEROSA SALOON October 350.00

11/20/2024 November 350.00
12/23/2024 December 350.00

2,100.00 267.60

Total Electric 6,650.00 827.53



Water payments CY 2019   12*$50 600.00
Water payments CY 2020   12*$50 600.00
Water payments CY 2021   12*$50 600.00
Water payments CY 2022   12*$50 600.00
Water payments CY 2023   12*$50 600.00
Water payments CY 2024   12*$50 600.00

3,600.00 -

Total as of Nov 25, 2024 10,250.00 827.53
Past Utilities Current Utilities

Total refund 11,077.53



Piper's Payments for Electricity to SPPCo or NV Energy
Post Date Packet Vendor Name

01/04/2019 GLPKT00486 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

02/01/2019 GLPKT00604 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

03/01/2019 GLPKT00715 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

03/29/2019 GLPKT00812 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

05/10/2019 GLPKT00970 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

06/07/2019 GLPKT01079 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

06/30/2019 GLPKT01180 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

08/02/2019 GLPKT01289 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

08/30/2019 GLPKT01385 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

10/11/2019 GLPKT01588 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

11/08/2019 GLPKT01697 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

12/02/2019 GLPKT01806 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

01/31/2020 GLPKT02021 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

02/28/2020 GLPKT02158 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

03/27/2020 GLPKT02262 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

05/08/2020 GLPKT02449 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

06/05/2020 GLPKT02551 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

06/30/2020 GLPKT02671 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

07/31/2020 GLPKT02803 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

08/28/2020 GLPKT02908 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

10/09/2020 GLPKT03069 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

11/06/2020 GLPKT03168 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

12/18/2020 GLPKT03333 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

12/31/2020 GLPKT03377 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

02/12/2021 GLPKT03533 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

03/12/2021 GLPKT03630 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

04/09/2021 GLPKT03759 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

05/07/2021 GLPKT03863 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

06/04/2021 GLPKT03977 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

06/30/2021 GLPKT04098 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

07/30/2021 GLPKT04261 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

08/27/2021 GLPKT04372 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

09/24/2021 GLPKT04480 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

11/05/2021 GLPKT04670 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

12/03/2021 GLPKT04777 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

12/31/2021 GLPKT04868 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

01/28/2022 GLPKT04988 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

02/25/2022 GLPKT05110 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

04/08/2022 GLPKT05262 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

05/06/2022 GLPKT05382 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

06/03/2022 GLPKT05510 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO



06/30/2022 GLPKT05645 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

07/29/2022 GLPKT05844 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

08/26/2022 GLPKT05992 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

10/07/2022 GLPKT06169 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

11/04/2022 GLPKT06291 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

12/02/2022 GLPKT06409 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

02/10/2023 GLPKT06649 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

03/10/2023 GLPKT06761 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

04/07/2023 GLPKT06874 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO



Description Amount

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 512.23

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 483.99

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 466.29

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 404.03

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 407.16

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 416.28

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 407.99
2,585.74

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 427.08

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 454.36

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 474.37

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 845.54

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 428.04

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 424.87

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 442.69

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 372.32

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 402.67

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 286.58

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 292.58
4,851.10

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 377.38

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 356.83

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 380.27

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 419.24

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 360.91

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 339.09

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 365.54

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 459.57

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 409.67

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 483.37

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 486.96

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 425.13
4,863.96

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 532.53

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 573.10

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 543.11

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 578.89

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 488.69

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 510.64

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 557.39

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 511.19

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 492.04

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 565.41

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 535.98



1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 562.19
6,451.16

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 759.34

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 752.44

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 744.32

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 659.83

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 703.97

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 727.98

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 885.72

1694053-293401 / 12 N B PIPERS VC NV 89440 733.10
5,966.70

Jan 2019-March 2023 24,718.66
Old Corner Bar 35% 8,651.53



Source Transaction

December

Item - INV0002060 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0002697 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0003229 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0003978 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0004612 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0005141 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0005807 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0006379 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0007083 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0007707 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0008191 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0009206 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0009687 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0010288 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0010883 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - 1000169405306327427 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0011770 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - INV0012186 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - 1000169405306327427 08192020 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - September 2020 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - October 2020 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - November 2020 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - December 2020 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - January 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - February 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - March 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - April 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - May 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - Payment : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - July 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - August 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - September 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - October 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - November 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - December 2021 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - January 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - February 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - March 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - April 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - MAY 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO



Item - JUNE 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - July 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - August 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - SEPT 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - OCT 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - NOV 2022 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - JAN 2023 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - FEB 2023 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

Item - MARCH 2023 : Vendor - SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of unbudgeted grant-funded, Health
Community Worker Position for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner), move to approve the unbudgeted grant-
funded, Health Community Worker Position for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year.

• Prepared by: Stacy York

Department: Health and Community Services     Contact Number: 775-
847-0957

• Staff Summary: This item seeks the consideration and potential approval of a grant-
funded position that was not included in the 2024-2025 fiscal year budget. The position,
funded through The Fund for a Resilient Nevada, is essential to support the goals,
projects and initiatives in the Health & Community Services Department. Approval of
this position will help align our strategic priorities moving forward.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       19



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 24-755, a resolution setting
grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045
for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year and superseding prior
year action by resolution for appointed Storey County employees with the addition of
Community Health Worker Grade 116 and the reallocation of Senior Services Director to
Health & Community Services Director Grade 152.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve Resolution No. 24-755, a
resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution
per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year and
superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County employees with
the addition of Community Health Worker Grade 116 and the reallocation of Senior
Services Director to Health & Community Services Director Grade 152.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department: HR     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: As our community continues to grow, the role of the Senior Services
Director has expanded beyond its original scope to encompass a broader range of services
for the entire community. To reflect this evolution, we are seeking approval to reallocate
the position of Senior Services Director to Health & Community Services Director at
grade 152.

•
• In addition, we are proposing the creation of a new Community Health Worker position

at grade 116, which will be grant-funded.
•
• The proposed grade levels for both positions are based on external salary data as well as

internal alignment to ensure fairness and competitiveness.
•
• In accordance with NRS 245.045, which grants the Board the authority to fix the salaries

of all appointive officers and employees through ordinances or resolutions, the proposed
resolution aligns with these legal requirements.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

       20



• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 24-755, a resolution setting grade and 
salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed 
Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year and superseding prior year action by 
resolution for appointed Storey County employees with the addition of Community Health 
Worker Grade 116 and the reallocation of Senior Services Director to Health & Community 
Services Director Grade 152.

I (commissioner) move to approve Resolution No. 24-755, a resolution setting grade and salary 
range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey 
County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year and superseding prior year action by resolution for 
appointed Storey County employees with the addition of Community Health Worker Grade 116 
and the reallocation of Senior Services Director to Health & Community Services Director Grade 
152.

As our community continues to grow, the role of the Senior Services Director has expanded 
beyond its original scope to encompass a broader range of services for the entire community. 
To reflect this evolution, we are seeking approval to reallocate the position of Senior Services 
Director to Health & Community Services Director at grade 152.

In addition, we are proposing the creation of a new Community Health Worker position at 
grade 116, which will be grant-funded. 

The proposed grade levels for both positions are based on external salary data as well as 
internal alignment to ensure fairness and competitiveness.

In accordance with NRS 245.045, which grants the Board the authority to fix the salaries of all 
appointive officers and employees through ordinances or resolutions, the proposed resolution 
aligns with these legal requirements.

NRS 245.045 states that the Board has authority to fix the salaries of all appointive officers and 
employees by the enactment of ordinances or the adoption of resolutions. The proposed 
resolution conforms to the NRS requirement. The proposed grade level requests are based on 
external salary data as well as internal alignment.

With the growth in the community the Senior Services Director no longer handles just senior 
services. This department is now covering a broader area of services to cover the whole 
community. We are seeking approval for the reallocation of the Senior Services Director to a 
Health & Community Services Director in grade 152. With this also comes approval of a new 
position as Community Health Worker. This position is grant funded. The proposed grade level 



requests are based on external salary data as well as internal alignment. NRS 245.045 states 
that the Board has authority to fix the salaries of all appointive officers and employees by the 
enactment of ordinances or the adoption of resolutions. The proposed resolution conforms to 
the NRS requirement.

This item seeks the consideration and potential approval of a grant-funded position that was not 
included in the 2024-2025 fiscal year budget. The position, funded through The Fund for a 
Resilient Nevada, is essential to support the goals, projects and initiatives in the Health & 
Community Services Department. Approval of this position will help align our strategic priorities 
moving forward.



RESOLUTION NO.  25-755

A RESOLUTION SETTING SALARIES OF EMPLOYEES FIXED 
BY ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION PER NRS 245.045 FOR 
APPOINTED OFFICIALS.  

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, STOREY COUNTY, 
NEVADA:

WHEREAS, for the purposes of NRS 245.045, the Storey County Board of County 
Commissioners has authority to establish the salaries of all appointed and non-
represented County employees by the enactment of a resolution.

WHEREAS, the salaries of all appointed officials and non-represented county 
employees, are consistently to be derived from a similar step and grade range 
salary system shown in the General Salary Schedule A for appointed officials 
and non-represented employees of the county and General Salary Schedule B 
for intermittent/less than parttime employees of the county.

WHEREAS, the General Salary Schedule step and grade ranges (Schedules A and 
B) will be consistent with the AFSCME general employees salary schedule and will
be adjusted accordingly on a year-by-year basis to account for cost-of-living and to
maintain consistency in the county’s classification plan.

WHEREAS, the salary grade range of appointed officials and non-represented 
employees shall be as follows for the 2024-25 fiscal period:

Position Salary Grade
Accounting / Payroll Technician Grade 122
Administrative Assistant I Grade 110
Administrative Assistant II Grade 116
Administrative Assistant III Grade 119
Administrative Officer Grade 140
Assistant Sheriff Grade 144
Automotive/Equipment Manager Grade 133
Bailiff/Court Services Officer Grade 124
Buildings and Grounds Manager Grade 133
Building Official Grade 144
Business Development Officer Grade 140
Chief Deputy District Attorney Grade 153
Civil/Records Division Manager Grade 130
Code Enforcement Officer Grade 124
Community Development Director Grade 152
Community Health Worker Grade 116
Community Resource Coordinator Grade 130
Comptroller Grade 154



Cook Grade 115
Corrections Officer Grade 117
County Manager Grade 161
Culinary Coordinator Grade 119
Cyber Security Officer Grade 133
Deputy District Attorney Grade 152
Dispatch Manager Grade 140
Emergency Management Director Grade 144
Events and Assistant Tourism Director Grade 140
Event and Site Manager Grade 124
Grants Manager Grade 135
Health & Community Services Director Grade 152
HR Director Grade 144
HR Generalist Grade 124
Information Technology Director Grade 152
Information Technology Officer Grade 140
Kitchen Aide Grade 110
Management Analyst Grade 131
Meals on Wheels Coordinator Grade 110
Planning Manager Grade 144
Program Coordinator (Senior Services) Grade 113
Project Manager Grade 133
Public Relations Officer Grade 124
Public Works Director Grade 152
Roads Manager Grade 133
Network Security Administrator Grade 140
Senior Center Site Manager Grade 119
Senior Planner Grade 140
Senior Services Director Grade 144
Tourism Director Grade 152
Undersheriff Grade 148

WHEREAS, the salary grade and step range of casual intermittent less-than part-time 
positions in the General Salary Schedule B shall be as follows for the 2024-25 fiscal 
period:

IPT Administrative Assistant I Grade 110
IPT Administrative Assistant II Grade 116
IPT Evidence Custodian Grade 115
IPT Facilities Maintenance Worker Grade 110
IPT Homemaker Grade 110
IPT Inmate Work Crew Coordinator Grade 117
IPT Lifeguard Grade 100
IPT Maintenance Worker/Heavy Equipment 
Operator

Grade 118

IPT Park Maintenance Worker Grade 105



IPT Pool Maintenance Worker Grade 110
IPT Pool Supervisor Grade 108
IPT Program Coordinator (Senior Services) Grade 113 
IPT Road Worker Grade 110
IPT Volunteer Coordinator (Sheriff Office) Grade 117
IPT Tourism Assistant Grade 110
IPT Tourism Transportation Driver Grade 110
IPT Transportation Driver Grade 110
IPT Visitor Liaison Grade 110

WHEREAS, the salary grade and step range of casual, intermittent, less-than part-time 
Deputy Sheriff positions shall be as outlined in Appendix A of the Storey County 
Sheriff’s Office Employees’ Association/Nevada Association of Police and Sheriff’s 
Officers (NAPSO) for the 2024-25 fiscal period.

WHEREAS, the flat-rate salaries for the positions below shall be set by the Storey County 
Board of Commissioners as follows:

$30,000 
Government Affairs Director

(salary split 50/50 with SCSD)
Justice of the Peace $ 89,500 

WHEREAS, salaries are set by the Nevada Legislature and County Commissioners 
for elected positions as follows:

Assessor $71,361 
Commissioners $30,806.31 
Clerk/Treasurer $71,361 
District Attorney $122,678 
Recorder $71,361 
Sheriff $96,937 

WHEREAS, if there is a PERS increase, said increase will be shared equally between Storey 
County and the employee in accordance with NRS 286.421 (3) (a) (1) and will be so reflected on 
Salary Schedule A. Salary Schedule B and casual, intermittent, less than part-time Deputy 
Sheriffs will not be impacted by any changes in PERS contributions. 



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD   
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, by unanimous vote, to adopt Resolution 25-755 
providing for the setting of salaries for the appointed officials and non-represented employees.

This resolution shall be effective on the 7th day of January 2025.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of January 2025.

THOSE VOTING AYE:

_____________________________

          _________________________________________

THOSE VOTING NAY:

      ________________________

      ________________________
STOREY COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:    ______________________________

     Jay Carmona, Chairman    

ATTEST: ______________________________
      CLERK TO THE BOARD



Non-Represented Non-Represented Pay Schedule
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

110 $ 40,472.71 $ 19.46 $ 41,889.25 $ 20.14 $ 43,355.38 $ 20.84 $ 44,872.82 $ 21.57 $ 46,443.36 $ 22.33 $ 48,068.87 $ 23.11 $ 49,751.29 $ 23.92 $ 51,492.58 $ 24.76 $ 53,294.83 $ 25.62 $ 55,160.13 $ 26.52
111 $ 41,484.53 $ 19.94 $ 42,936.48 $ 20.64 $ 44,439.25 $ 21.37 $ 45,994.64 $ 22.11 $ 47,604.44 $ 22.89 $ 49,270.59 $ 23.69 $ 50,995.07 $ 24.52 $ 52,779.89 $ 25.37 $ 54,627.18 $ 26.26 $ 56,539.13 $ 27.18
112 $ 42,521.62 $ 20.44 $ 44,009.90 $ 21.16 $ 45,550.23 $ 21.90 $ 47,144.49 $ 22.67 $ 48,794.54 $ 23.46 $ 50,502.35 $ 24.28 $ 52,269.95 $ 25.13 $ 54,099.39 $ 26.01 $ 55,992.87 $ 26.92 $ 57,952.63 $ 27.86
113 $ 43,584.69 $ 20.95 $ 45,110.14 $ 21.69 $ 46,689.01 $ 22.45 $ 48,323.11 $ 23.23 $ 50,014.44 $ 24.05 $ 51,764.94 $ 24.89 $ 53,576.71 $ 25.76 $ 55,451.89 $ 26.66 $ 57,392.71 $ 27.59 $ 59,401.45 $ 28.56
114 $ 44,674.30 $ 21.48 $ 46,237.88 $ 22.23 $ 47,856.22 $ 23.01 $ 49,531.18 $ 23.81 $ 51,264.77 $ 24.65 $ 53,059.04 $ 25.51 $ 54,916.12 $ 26.40 $ 56,838.16 $ 27.33 $ 58,827.49 $ 28.28 $ 60,886.46 $ 29.27
115 $ 45,791.15 $ 22.01 $ 47,393.84 $ 22.79 $ 49,052.62 $ 23.58 $ 50,769.47 $ 24.41 $ 52,546.38 $ 25.26 $ 54,385.53 $ 26.15 $ 56,289.02 $ 27.06 $ 58,259.14 $ 28.01 $ 60,298.19 $ 28.99 $ 62,408.64 $ 30.00
116 $ 46,935.93 $ 22.57 $ 48,578.70 $ 23.36 $ 50,278.95 $ 24.17 $ 52,038.71 $ 25.02 $ 53,860.07 $ 25.89 $ 55,745.17 $ 26.80 $ 57,696.26 $ 27.74 $ 59,715.62 $ 28.71 $ 61,805.67 $ 29.71 $ 63,968.87 $ 30.75
117 $ 48,109.32 $ 23.13 $ 49,793.14 $ 23.94 $ 51,535.92 $ 24.78 $ 53,339.68 $ 25.64 $ 55,206.55 $ 26.54 $ 57,138.80 $ 27.47 $ 59,138.63 $ 28.43 $ 61,208.50 $ 29.43 $ 63,350.79 $ 30.46 $ 65,568.08 $ 31.52
118 $ 49,312.06 $ 23.71 $ 51,037.98 $ 24.54 $ 52,824.30 $ 25.40 $ 54,673.15 $ 26.29 $ 56,586.72 $ 27.21 $ 58,567.25 $ 28.16 $ 60,617.11 $ 29.14 $ 62,738.70 $ 30.16 $ 64,934.57 $ 31.22 $ 67,207.27 $ 32.31
119 $ 50,544.87 $ 24.30 $ 52,313.94 $ 25.15 $ 54,144.93 $ 26.03 $ 56,040.00 $ 26.94 $ 58,001.40 $ 27.89 $ 60,031.46 $ 28.86 $ 62,132.56 $ 29.87 $ 64,307.20 $ 30.92 $ 66,557.95 $ 32.00 $ 68,887.47 $ 33.12
120 $ 51,808.49 $ 24.91 $ 53,621.79 $ 25.78 $ 55,498.56 $ 26.68 $ 57,441.01 $ 27.62 $ 59,451.44 $ 28.58 $ 61,532.23 $ 29.58 $ 63,685.88 $ 30.62 $ 65,914.87 $ 31.69 $ 68,221.89 $ 32.80 $ 70,609.66 $ 33.95
121 $ 53,103.69 $ 25.53 $ 54,962.33 $ 26.42 $ 56,886.00 $ 27.35 $ 58,877.02 $ 28.31 $ 60,937.72 $ 29.30 $ 63,070.54 $ 30.32 $ 65,277.99 $ 31.38 $ 67,562.73 $ 32.48 $ 69,927.43 $ 33.62 $ 72,374.88 $ 34.80
122 $ 54,431.29 $ 26.17 $ 56,336.38 $ 27.08 $ 58,308.17 $ 28.03 $ 60,348.94 $ 29.01 $ 62,461.18 $ 30.03 $ 64,647.32 $ 31.08 $ 66,909.97 $ 32.17 $ 69,251.81 $ 33.29 $ 71,675.64 $ 34.46 $ 74,184.28 $ 35.67
123 $ 55,792.07 $ 26.82 $ 57,744.80 $ 27.76 $ 59,765.87 $ 28.73 $ 61,857.68 $ 29.74 $ 64,022.68 $ 30.78 $ 66,263.47 $ 31.86 $ 68,582.70 $ 32.97 $ 70,983.11 $ 34.13 $ 73,467.50 $ 35.32 $ 76,038.89 $ 36.56
124 $ 57,186.87 $ 27.49 $ 59,188.41 $ 28.46 $ 61,260.02 $ 29.45 $ 63,404.10 $ 30.48 $ 65,623.25 $ 31.55 $ 67,920.07 $ 32.65 $ 70,297.27 $ 33.80 $ 72,757.67 $ 34.98 $ 75,304.20 $ 36.20 $ 77,939.85 $ 37.47
125 $ 58,616.53 $ 28.18 $ 60,668.12 $ 29.17 $ 62,791.49 $ 30.19 $ 64,989.21 $ 31.24 $ 67,263.83 $ 32.34 $ 69,618.06 $ 33.47 $ 72,054.70 $ 34.64 $ 74,576.61 $ 35.85 $ 77,186.79 $ 37.11 $ 79,888.33 $ 38.41
126 $ 60,081.97 $ 28.89 $ 62,184.83 $ 29.90 $ 64,361.30 $ 30.94 $ 66,613.94 $ 32.03 $ 68,945.43 $ 33.15 $ 71,358.51 $ 34.31 $ 73,856.08 $ 35.51 $ 76,441.01 $ 36.75 $ 79,116.46 $ 38.04 $ 81,885.53 $ 39.37
127 $ 61,584.01 $ 29.61 $ 63,739.44 $ 30.64 $ 65,970.35 $ 31.72 $ 68,279.30 $ 32.83 $ 70,669.06 $ 33.98 $ 73,142.49 $ 35.16 $ 75,702.47 $ 36.40 $ 78,352.06 $ 37.67 $ 81,094.39 $ 38.99 $ 83,932.69 $ 40.35
128 $ 63,123.59 $ 30.35 $ 65,332.94 $ 31.41 $ 67,619.58 $ 32.51 $ 69,986.28 $ 33.65 $ 72,435.80 $ 34.82 $ 74,971.04 $ 36.04 $ 77,595.02 $ 37.31 $ 80,310.85 $ 38.61 $ 83,121.74 $ 39.96 $ 86,031.00 $ 41.36
129 $ 64,701.71 $ 31.11 $ 66,966.26 $ 32.20 $ 69,310.08 $ 33.32 $ 71,735.94 $ 34.49 $ 74,246.71 $ 35.70 $ 76,845.34 $ 36.94 $ 79,534.93 $ 38.24 $ 82,318.63 $ 39.58 $ 85,199.79 $ 40.96 $ 88,181.78 $ 42.40
130 $ 66,319.24 $ 31.88 $ 68,640.42 $ 33.00 $ 71,042.84 $ 34.16 $ 73,529.35 $ 35.35 $ 76,102.87 $ 36.59 $ 78,766.47 $ 37.87 $ 81,523.29 $ 39.19 $ 84,376.60 $ 40.57 $ 87,329.78 $ 41.99 $ 90,386.32 $ 43.45
131 $ 67,977.22 $ 32.68 $ 70,356.43 $ 33.83 $ 72,818.91 $ 35.01 $ 75,367.56 $ 36.23 $ 78,005.42 $ 37.50 $ 80,735.63 $ 38.82 $ 83,561.36 $ 40.17 $ 86,486.00 $ 41.58 $ 89,513.02 $ 43.04 $ 92,645.99 $ 44.54
132 $ 69,676.65 $ 33.50 $ 72,115.33 $ 34.67 $ 74,639.38 $ 35.88 $ 77,251.75 $ 37.14 $ 79,955.56 $ 38.44 $ 82,754.01 $ 39.79 $ 85,650.39 $ 41.18 $ 88,648.16 $ 42.62 $ 91,750.84 $ 44.11 $ 94,962.12 $ 45.65
133 $ 71,418.55 $ 34.34 $ 73,918.21 $ 35.54 $ 76,505.34 $ 36.78 $ 79,183.04 $ 38.07 $ 81,954.44 $ 39.40 $ 84,822.84 $ 40.78 $ 87,791.64 $ 42.21 $ 90,864.35 $ 43.68 $ 94,044.61 $ 45.21 $ 97,336.18 $ 46.80
134 $ 73,204.03 $ 35.19 $ 75,766.15 $ 36.43 $ 78,417.98 $ 37.70 $ 81,162.61 $ 39.02 $ 84,003.30 $ 40.39 $ 86,943.42 $ 41.80 $ 89,986.43 $ 43.26 $ 93,135.97 $ 44.78 $ 96,395.71 $ 46.34 $ 99,769.57 $ 47.97
135 $ 75,034.13 $ 36.07 $ 77,660.32 $ 37.34 $ 80,378.44 $ 38.64 $ 83,191.68 $ 40.00 $ 86,103.39 $ 41.40 $ 89,117.01 $ 42.84 $ 92,236.10 $ 44.34 $ 95,464.36 $ 45.90 $ 98,805.62 $ 47.50 $ 102,263.81 $ 49.17
136 $ 76,909.99 $ 36.98 $ 79,601.83 $ 38.27 $ 82,387.90 $ 39.61 $ 85,271.47 $ 41.00 $ 88,255.98 $ 42.43 $ 91,344.95 $ 43.92 $ 94,542.02 $ 45.45 $ 97,850.98 $ 47.04 $ 101,275.77 $ 48.69 $ 104,820.42 $ 50.39
137 $ 78,832.74 $ 37.90 $ 81,591.90 $ 39.23 $ 84,447.60 $ 40.60 $ 87,403.27 $ 42.02 $ 90,462.38 $ 43.49 $ 93,628.56 $ 45.01 $ 96,905.56 $ 46.59 $ 100,297.25 $ 48.22 $ 103,807.65 $ 49.91 $ 107,440.94 $ 51.65
138 $ 80,803.56 $ 38.85 $ 83,631.68 $ 40.21 $ 86,558.78 $ 41.61 $ 89,588.35 $ 43.07 $ 92,723.94 $ 44.58 $ 95,969.28 $ 46.14 $ 99,328.20 $ 47.75 $ 102,804.70 $ 49.43 $ 106,402.86 $ 51.16 $ 110,126.95 $ 52.95
139 $ 82,823.66 $ 39.82 $ 85,722.47 $ 41.21 $ 88,722.77 $ 42.66 $ 91,828.06 $ 44.15 $ 95,042.05 $ 45.69 $ 98,368.51 $ 47.29 $ 101,811.41 $ 48.95 $ 105,374.80 $ 50.66 $ 109,062.94 $ 52.43 $ 112,880.15 $ 54.27
140 $ 84,894.26 $ 40.81 $ 87,865.54 $ 42.24 $ 90,940.83 $ 43.72 $ 94,123.76 $ 45.25 $ 97,418.11 $ 46.84 $ 100,827.74 $ 48.47 $ 104,356.72 $ 50.17 $ 108,009.19 $ 51.93 $ 111,789.53 $ 53.74 $ 115,702.15 $ 55.63
141 $ 87,016.59 $ 41.83 $ 90,062.18 $ 43.30 $ 93,214.34 $ 44.81 $ 96,476.85 $ 46.38 $ 99,853.55 $ 48.01 $ 103,348.42 $ 49.69 $ 106,965.60 $ 51.43 $ 110,709.40 $ 53.23 $ 114,584.24 $ 55.09 $ 118,594.70 $ 57.02
142 $ 89,192.02 $ 42.88 $ 92,313.73 $ 44.38 $ 95,544.71 $ 45.93 $ 98,888.78 $ 47.54 $ 102,349.89 $ 49.21 $ 105,932.14 $ 50.93 $ 109,639.75 $ 52.71 $ 113,477.15 $ 54.56 $ 117,448.85 $ 56.47 $ 121,559.55 $ 58.44
143 $ 91,421.82 $ 43.95 $ 94,621.58 $ 45.49 $ 97,933.34 $ 47.08 $ 101,361.01 $ 48.73 $ 104,908.63 $ 50.44 $ 108,580.45 $ 52.20 $ 112,380.75 $ 54.03 $ 116,314.07 $ 55.92 $ 120,385.08 $ 57.88 $ 124,598.55 $ 59.90
144 $ 93,707.36 $ 45.05 $ 96,987.14 $ 46.63 $ 100,381.67 $ 48.26 $ 103,895.04 $ 49.95 $ 107,531.36 $ 51.70 $ 111,294.96 $ 53.51 $ 115,190.30 $ 55.38 $ 119,221.95 $ 57.32 $ 123,394.71 $ 59.32 $ 127,713.53 $ 61.40
145 $ 96,050.04 $ 46.18 $ 99,411.80 $ 47.79 $ 102,891.19 $ 49.47 $ 106,492.41 $ 51.20 $ 110,219.62 $ 52.99 $ 114,077.33 $ 54.84 $ 118,070.02 $ 56.76 $ 122,202.47 $ 58.75 $ 126,479.56 $ 60.81 $ 130,906.35 $ 62.94
146 $ 98,451.31 $ 47.33 $ 101,897.09 $ 48.99 $ 105,463.49 $ 50.70 $ 109,154.71 $ 52.48 $ 112,975.13 $ 54.31 $ 116,929.26 $ 56.22 $ 121,021.80 $ 58.18 $ 125,257.55 $ 60.22 $ 129,641.56 $ 62.33 $ 134,179.01 $ 64.51
147 $ 100,912.59 $ 48.52 $ 104,444.51 $ 50.21 $ 108,100.07 $ 51.97 $ 111,883.59 $ 53.79 $ 115,799.50 $ 55.67 $ 119,852.49 $ 57.62 $ 124,047.33 $ 59.64 $ 128,388.97 $ 61.73 $ 132,882.59 $ 63.89 $ 137,533.50 $ 66.12
148 $ 103,435.37 $ 49.73 $ 107,055.64 $ 51.47 $ 110,802.58 $ 53.27 $ 114,680.66 $ 55.13 $ 118,694.48 $ 57.06 $ 122,848.78 $ 59.06 $ 127,148.51 $ 61.13 $ 131,598.69 $ 63.27 $ 136,204.66 $ 65.48 $ 140,971.81 $ 67.77
149 $ 106,021.28 $ 50.97 $ 109,732.04 $ 52.76 $ 113,572.64 $ 54.60 $ 117,547.70 $ 56.51 $ 121,661.87 $ 58.49 $ 125,920.03 $ 60.54 $ 130,327.24 $ 62.66 $ 134,888.69 $ 64.85 $ 139,609.79 $ 67.12 $ 144,496.13 $ 69.47
150 $ 108,671.80 $ 52.25 $ 112,475.34 $ 54.07 $ 116,411.97 $ 55.97 $ 120,486.39 $ 57.93 $ 124,703.39 $ 59.95 $ 129,068.03 $ 62.05 $ 133,585.39 $ 64.22 $ 138,260.90 $ 66.47 $ 143,100.03 $ 68.80 $ 148,108.53 $ 71.21
151 $ 111,388.61 $ 53.55 $ 115,287.22 $ 55.43 $ 119,322.28 $ 57.37 $ 123,498.55 $ 59.37 $ 127,821.01 $ 61.45 $ 132,294.72 $ 63.60 $ 136,925.06 $ 65.83 $ 141,717.42 $ 68.13 $ 146,677.53 $ 70.52 $ 151,811.25 $ 72.99
152 $ 114,173.32 $ 54.89 $ 118,169.39 $ 56.81 $ 122,305.32 $ 58.80 $ 126,586.03 $ 60.86 $ 131,016.52 $ 62.99 $ 135,602.09 $ 65.19 $ 140,348.16 $ 67.48 $ 145,260.36 $ 69.84 $ 150,344.47 $ 72.28 $ 155,606.52 $ 74.81
153 $ 117,027.67 $ 56.26 $ 121,123.63 $ 58.23 $ 125,362.96 $ 60.27 $ 129,750.65 $ 62.38 $ 134,291.92 $ 64.56 $ 138,992.15 $ 66.82 $ 143,856.88 $ 69.16 $ 148,891.87 $ 71.58 $ 154,103.08 $ 74.09 $ 159,496.70 $ 76.68
154 $ 119,953.35 $ 57.67 $ 124,151.72 $ 59.69 $ 128,497.03 $ 61.78 $ 132,994.41 $ 63.94 $ 137,649.23 $ 66.18 $ 142,466.95 $ 68.49 $ 147,453.28 $ 70.89 $ 152,614.13 $ 73.37 $ 157,955.65 $ 75.94 $ 163,484.10 $ 78.60
155 $ 122,952.18 $ 59.11 $ 127,255.51 $ 61.18 $ 131,709.46 $ 63.32 $ 136,319.27 $ 65.54 $ 141,090.45 $ 67.83 $ 146,028.63 $ 70.21 $ 151,139.63 $ 72.66 $ 156,429.52 $ 75.21 $ 161,904.54 $ 77.84 $ 167,571.20 $ 80.56
156 $ 126,026.00 $ 60.59 $ 130,436.91 $ 62.71 $ 135,002.20 $ 64.90 $ 139,727.27 $ 67.18 $ 144,617.73 $ 69.53 $ 149,679.35 $ 71.96 $ 154,918.12 $ 74.48 $ 160,340.27 $ 77.09 $ 165,952.17 $ 79.78 $ 171,760.50 $ 82.58
157 $ 129,176.64 $ 62.10 $ 133,697.82 $ 64.28 $ 138,377.25 $ 66.53 $ 143,220.45 $ 68.86 $ 148,233.16 $ 71.27 $ 153,421.32 $ 73.76 $ 158,791.07 $ 76.34 $ 164,348.76 $ 79.01 $ 170,100.97 $ 81.78 $ 176,054.50 $ 84.64
158 $ 132,406.05 $ 63.66 $ 137,040.25 $ 65.88 $ 141,836.67 $ 68.19 $ 146,800.94 $ 70.58 $ 151,938.99 $ 73.05 $ 157,256.85 $ 75.60 $ 162,760.83 $ 78.25 $ 168,457.48 $ 80.99 $ 174,353.48 $ 83.82 $ 180,455.84 $ 86.76
159 $ 135,716.20 $ 65.25 $ 140,466.28 $ 67.53 $ 145,382.60 $ 69.90 $ 150,470.99 $ 72.34 $ 155,737.48 $ 74.87 $ 161,188.28 $ 77.49 $ 166,829.87 $ 80.21 $ 172,668.93 $ 83.01 $ 178,712.33 $ 85.92 $ 184,967.27 $ 88.93
160 $ 139,109.12 $ 66.88 $ 143,977.93 $ 69.22 $ 149,017.17 $ 71.64 $ 154,232.77 $ 74.15 $ 159,630.91 $ 76.75 $ 165,218.00 $ 79.43 $ 171,000.63 $ 82.21 $ 176,985.66 $ 85.09 $ 183,180.16 $ 88.07 $ 189,591.46 $ 91.15
161 $ 142,586.84 $ 68.55 $ 147,577.39 $ 70.95 $ 152,742.59 $ 73.43 $ 158,088.58 $ 76.00 $ 163,621.68 $ 78.66 $ 169,348.45 $ 81.42 $ 175,275.65 $ 84.27 $ 181,410.27 $ 87.22 $ 187,759.64 $ 90.27 $ 194,331.23 $ 93.43
162 $ 146,151.51 $ 70.27 $ 151,266.81 $ 72.72 $ 156,561.14 $ 75.27 $ 162,040.79 $ 77.90 $ 167,712.21 $ 80.63 $ 173,582.15 $ 83.45 $ 179,657.53 $ 86.37 $ 185,945.54 $ 89.40 $ 192,453.64 $ 92.53 $ 199,189.51 $ 95.76
163 $ 149,805.31 $ 72.02 $ 155,048.48 $ 74.54 $ 160,475.20 $ 77.15 $ 166,091.81 $ 79.85 $ 171,905.03 $ 82.65 $ 177,921.70 $ 85.54 $ 184,148.96 $ 88.53 $ 190,594.18 $ 91.63 $ 197,264.97 $ 94.84 $ 204,169.26 $ 98.16
164 $ 153,550.43 $ 73.82 $ 158,924.70 $ 76.41 $ 164,487.07 $ 79.08 $ 170,244.10 $ 81.85 $ 176,202.65 $ 84.71 $ 182,369.74 $ 87.68 $ 188,752.67 $ 90.75 $ 195,359.02 $ 93.92 $ 202,196.60 $ 97.21 $ 209,273.48 $ 100.61
165 $ 157,389.20 $ 75.67 $ 162,897.81 $ 78.32 $ 168,599.25 $ 81.06 $ 174,500.21 $ 83.89 $ 180,607.73 $ 86.83 $ 186,928.99 $ 89.87 $ 193,471.50 $ 93.02 $ 200,243.00 $ 96.27 $ 207,251.50 $ 99.64 $ 214,505.33 $ 103.13



IPT Non-Represented
1 2 3 4 5 6

97 $ 29,661.90 $ 30,700.05 $ 31,774.59 $ 32,886.68 $ 34,037.71 $ 35,229.02
98 $ 30,418.83 $ 31,483.48 $ 32,585.39 $ 33,725.89 $ 34,906.30 $ 36,128.00
99 $ 31,199.39 $ 32,291.37 $ 33,421.57 $ 34,591.34 $ 35,802.02 $ 37,055.10
100 $ 32,003.64 $ 33,123.76 $ 34,283.09 $ 35,482.99 $ 36,724.89 $ 38,010.28
101 $ 32,831.53 $ 33,980.61 $ 35,169.92 $ 36,400.89 $ 37,674.92 $ 38,993.55
102 $ 33,683.04 $ 34,861.96 $ 36,082.13 $ 37,345.00 $ 38,652.07 $ 40,004.91
103 $ 34,558.25 $ 35,767.79 $ 37,019.65 $ 38,315.35 $ 39,656.39 $ 41,044.34
104 $ 35,433.43 $ 36,673.61 $ 37,957.17 $ 39,285.69 $ 40,660.67 $ 42,083.80
105 $ 36,332.29 $ 37,603.92 $ 38,920.04 $ 40,282.25 $ 41,692.12 $ 43,151.34
106 $ 37,254.78 $ 38,558.69 $ 39,908.25 $ 41,305.03 $ 42,750.70 $ 44,246.98
107 $ 38,200.93 $ 39,537.96 $ 40,921.79 $ 42,354.05 $ 43,836.44 $ 45,370.72
108 $ 39,170.74 $ 40,541.71 $ 41,960.67 $ 43,429.30 $ 44,949.32 $ 46,522.56
109 $ 40,187.85 $ 41,594.41 $ 43,050.22 $ 44,556.98 $ 46,116.48 $ 47,730.57
110 $ 41,230.63 $ 42,673.69 $ 44,167.27 $ 45,713.14 $ 47,313.10 $ 48,969.04
111 $ 42,261.39 $ 43,740.54 $ 45,271.46 $ 46,855.96 $ 48,495.92 $ 50,193.28
112 $ 43,317.91 $ 44,834.03 $ 46,403.23 $ 48,027.34 $ 49,708.29 $ 51,448.09
113 $ 44,400.88 $ 45,954.90 $ 47,563.33 $ 49,228.03 $ 50,951.03 $ 52,734.32
114 $ 45,510.89 $ 47,103.76 $ 48,752.41 $ 50,458.73 $ 52,224.78 $ 54,052.66
115 $ 46,648.65 $ 48,281.36 $ 49,971.20 $ 51,720.21 $ 53,530.40 $ 55,403.98
116 $ 47,814.88 $ 49,488.42 $ 51,220.50 $ 53,013.22 $ 54,868.69 $ 56,789.09
117 $ 49,010.25 $ 50,725.60 $ 52,501.01 $ 54,338.54 $ 56,240.38 $ 58,208.81
118 $ 50,235.51 $ 51,993.75 $ 53,813.52 $ 55,696.99 $ 57,646.40 $ 59,664.02
119 $ 51,491.40 $ 53,293.61 $ 55,158.88 $ 57,089.44 $ 59,087.57 $ 61,155.64
120 $ 52,778.69 $ 54,625.94 $ 56,537.85 $ 58,516.68 $ 60,564.76 $ 62,684.53
121 $ 54,098.14 $ 55,991.59 $ 57,951.28 $ 59,979.59 $ 62,078.87 $ 64,251.63
122 $ 55,450.60 $ 57,391.38 $ 59,400.08 $ 61,479.08 $ 63,630.86 $ 65,857.94
123 $ 56,836.86 $ 58,826.16 $ 60,885.08 $ 63,016.06 $ 65,221.60 $ 67,504.37
124 $ 58,257.79 $ 60,296.81 $ 62,407.21 $ 64,591.44 $ 66,852.15 $ 69,191.98
125 $ 59,714.23 $ 61,804.22 $ 63,967.36 $ 66,206.24 $ 68,523.45 $ 70,921.77
126 $ 61,207.10 $ 63,349.34 $ 65,566.56 $ 67,861.39 $ 70,236.54 $ 72,694.81
127 $ 62,737.26 $ 64,933.07 $ 67,205.74 $ 69,557.94 $ 71,992.44 $ 74,512.20
128 $ 64,305.68 $ 66,556.41 $ 68,885.87 $ 71,296.88 $ 73,792.27 $ 76,374.99
129 $ 65,913.36 $ 68,220.32 $ 70,608.03 $ 73,079.31 $ 75,637.09 $ 78,284.39
130 $ 67,561.17 $ 69,925.83 $ 72,373.23 $ 74,906.30 $ 77,528.02 $ 80,241.50
131 $ 69,250.20 $ 71,673.97 $ 74,182.56 $ 76,778.93 $ 79,466.19 $ 82,247.53
132 $ 70,981.46 $ 73,465.80 $ 76,037.11 $ 78,698.42 $ 81,452.85 $ 84,303.71
133 $ 72,755.98 $ 75,302.45 $ 77,938.03 $ 80,665.86 $ 83,489.17 $ 86,411.29
134 $ 74,574.89 $ 77,185.00 $ 79,886.48 $ 82,682.51 $ 85,576.40 $ 88,571.57
135 $ 76,439.26 $ 79,114.64 $ 81,883.65 $ 84,749.58 $ 87,715.81 $ 90,785.87
136 $ 78,350.26 $ 81,092.50 $ 83,930.74 $ 86,868.31 $ 89,908.71 $ 93,055.53
137 $ 80,309.01 $ 83,119.83 $ 86,029.01 $ 89,040.03 $ 92,156.44 $ 95,381.91
138 $ 82,316.74 $ 85,197.81 $ 88,179.74 $ 91,266.04 $ 94,460.34 $ 97,766.46
139 $ 84,374.67 $ 87,327.76 $ 90,384.25 $ 93,547.69 $ 96,821.86 $ 100,210.62
140 $ 86,484.04 $ 89,510.97 $ 92,643.84 $ 95,886.39 $ 99,242.41 $ 102,715.90
141 $ 88,646.12 $ 91,748.74 $ 94,959.93 $ 98,283.54 $ 101,723.47 $ 105,283.79



142 $ 90,862.28 $ 94,042.45 $ 97,333.94 $ 100,740.62 $ 104,266.56 $ 107,915.89
143 $ 93,133.84 $ 96,393.52 $ 99,767.30 $ 103,259.16 $ 106,873.22 $ 110,613.79
144 $ 95,462.18 $ 98,803.38 $ 102,261.48 $ 105,840.64 $ 109,545.06 $ 113,379.14
145 $ 97,848.74 $ 101,273.44 $ 104,818.00 $ 108,486.65 $ 112,283.66 $ 116,213.61
146 $ 100,294.97 $ 103,805.28 $ 107,438.47 $ 111,198.81 $ 115,090.76 $ 119,118.94
147 $ 102,802.34 $ 106,400.40 $ 110,124.42 $ 113,978.79 $ 117,968.03 $ 122,096.92
148 $ 105,372.37 $ 109,060.43 $ 112,877.53 $ 116,828.24 $ 120,917.22 $ 125,149.32
149 $ 108,006.69 $ 111,786.94 $ 115,699.47 $ 119,748.97 $ 123,940.18 $ 128,278.08
150 $ 110,706.85 $ 114,581.61 $ 118,591.97 $ 122,742.69 $ 127,038.67 $ 131,485.03
151 $ 113,474.53 $ 117,446.16 $ 121,556.78 $ 125,811.25 $ 130,214.66 $ 134,772.16
152 $ 116,311.40 $ 120,382.30 $ 124,595.68 $ 128,956.55 $ 133,470.01 $ 138,141.46
153 $ 119,219.20 $ 123,391.87 $ 127,710.58 $ 132,180.44 $ 136,806.75 $ 141,595.00
154 $ 122,199.66 $ 126,476.65 $ 130,903.34 $ 135,484.95 $ 140,226.93 $ 145,134.87
155 $ 125,254.65 $ 129,638.56 $ 134,175.92 $ 138,872.06 $ 143,732.59 $ 148,763.25
156 $ 128,386.04 $ 132,879.54 $ 137,530.33 $ 142,343.89 $ 147,325.93 $ 152,482.33
157 $ 131,595.67 $ 136,201.52 $ 140,968.58 $ 145,902.48 $ 151,009.07 $ 156,294.38
158 $ 134,885.56 $ 139,606.55 $ 144,492.79 $ 149,550.02 $ 154,784.28 $ 160,201.73
159 $ 138,257.71 $ 143,096.73 $ 148,105.12 $ 153,288.80 $ 158,653.90 $ 164,206.79
160 $ 141,714.16 $ 146,674.15 $ 151,807.75 $ 157,121.03 $ 162,620.25 $ 168,311.97
161 $ 145,257.01 $ 150,341.01 $ 155,602.94 $ 161,049.04 $ 166,685.75 $ 172,519.76
162 $ 148,888.43 $ 154,099.52 $ 159,493.00 $ 165,075.26 $ 170,852.90 $ 176,832.75
163 $ 152,610.65 $ 157,952.01 $ 163,480.35 $ 169,202.15 $ 175,124.23 $ 181,253.57
164 $ 156,425.91 $ 161,900.82 $ 167,567.34 $ 173,432.19 $ 179,502.32 $ 185,784.90
165 $ 160,336.56 $ 165,948.34 $ 171,756.54 $ 177,768.01 $ 183,989.89 $ 190,429.54



7 8 9 10
$ 36,462.05 $ 37,738.22 $ 39,059.05 $ 40,426.12
$ 37,392.49 $ 38,701.24 $ 40,055.77 $ 41,457.73
$ 38,352.04 $ 39,694.35 $ 41,083.66 $ 42,521.57
$ 39,340.63 $ 40,717.55 $ 42,142.67 $ 43,617.66
$ 40,358.31 $ 41,770.84 $ 43,232.82 $ 44,745.98
$ 41,405.06 $ 42,854.24 $ 44,354.15 $ 45,906.55
$ 42,480.88 $ 43,967.74 $ 45,506.62 $ 47,099.34
$ 43,556.73 $ 45,081.22 $ 46,659.07 $ 48,292.13
$ 44,661.64 $ 46,224.82 $ 47,842.68 $ 49,517.16
$ 45,795.64 $ 47,398.48 $ 49,057.42 $ 50,774.44
$ 46,958.69 $ 48,602.24 $ 50,303.34 $ 52,063.95
$ 48,150.84 $ 49,836.12 $ 51,580.37 $ 53,385.69
$ 49,401.13 $ 51,130.18 $ 52,919.73 $ 54,771.91
$ 50,682.96 $ 52,456.86 $ 54,292.86 $ 56,193.10
$ 51,950.04 $ 53,768.29 $ 55,650.18 $ 57,597.94
$ 53,248.77 $ 55,112.47 $ 57,041.41 $ 59,037.86
$ 54,580.02 $ 56,490.32 $ 58,467.47 $ 60,513.84
$ 55,944.50 $ 57,902.55 $ 59,929.13 $ 62,026.66
$ 57,343.11 $ 59,350.13 $ 61,427.37 $ 63,577.34
$ 58,776.71 $ 60,833.89 $ 62,963.07 $ 65,166.79
$ 60,246.10 $ 62,354.72 $ 64,537.14 $ 66,795.95
$ 61,752.27 $ 63,913.58 $ 66,150.57 $ 68,465.83
$ 63,296.08 $ 65,511.45 $ 67,804.36 $ 70,177.50
$ 64,878.50 $ 67,149.23 $ 69,499.46 $ 71,931.95
$ 66,500.42 $ 68,827.95 $ 71,236.93 $ 73,730.21
$ 68,162.96 $ 70,548.66 $ 73,017.88 $ 75,573.50
$ 69,867.02 $ 72,312.38 $ 74,843.30 $ 77,462.84
$ 71,613.70 $ 74,120.18 $ 76,714.39 $ 79,399.40
$ 73,404.04 $ 75,973.17 $ 78,632.24 $ 81,384.36
$ 75,239.15 $ 77,872.49 $ 80,598.04 $ 83,418.97
$ 77,120.12 $ 79,819.33 $ 82,613.00 $ 85,504.46
$ 79,048.11 $ 81,814.80 $ 84,678.32 $ 87,642.07
$ 81,024.34 $ 83,860.18 $ 86,795.30 $ 89,833.13
$ 83,049.94 $ 85,956.69 $ 88,965.17 $ 92,078.95
$ 85,126.17 $ 88,105.59 $ 91,189.29 $ 94,380.93
$ 87,254.33 $ 90,308.24 $ 93,469.02 $ 96,740.44
$ 89,435.69 $ 92,565.94 $ 95,805.74 $ 99,158.95
$ 91,671.57 $ 94,880.09 $ 98,200.88 $ 101,637.91
$ 93,963.37 $ 97,252.09 $ 100,655.91 $ 104,178.86
$ 96,312.46 $ 99,683.39 $ 103,172.32 $ 106,783.35
$ 98,720.27 $ 102,175.48 $ 105,751.61 $ 109,452.94
$ 101,188.28 $ 104,729.88 $ 108,395.43 $ 112,189.26
$ 103,718.00 $ 107,348.12 $ 111,105.31 $ 114,994.01
$ 106,310.96 $ 110,031.83 $ 113,882.96 $ 117,868.86
$ 108,968.71 $ 112,782.62 $ 116,730.01 $ 120,815.57



$ 111,692.93 $ 115,602.19 $ 119,648.27 $ 123,835.95
$ 114,485.26 $ 118,492.24 $ 122,639.48 $ 126,931.86
$ 117,347.42 $ 121,454.57 $ 125,705.48 $ 130,105.16
$ 120,281.07 $ 124,490.90 $ 128,848.09 $ 133,357.79
$ 123,288.12 $ 127,603.20 $ 132,069.30 $ 136,691.73
$ 126,370.31 $ 130,793.26 $ 135,371.03 $ 140,109.02
$ 129,529.57 $ 134,063.08 $ 138,755.31 $ 143,611.74
$ 132,767.82 $ 137,414.69 $ 142,224.20 $ 147,202.04
$ 136,086.99 $ 140,850.05 $ 145,779.81 $ 150,882.10
$ 139,489.20 $ 144,371.30 $ 149,424.30 $ 154,654.16
$ 142,976.41 $ 147,980.60 $ 153,159.91 $ 158,520.49
$ 146,550.83 $ 151,680.10 $ 156,988.90 $ 162,483.52
$ 150,214.58 $ 155,472.08 $ 160,913.62 $ 166,545.60
$ 153,969.96 $ 159,358.91 $ 164,936.46 $ 170,709.24
$ 157,819.21 $ 163,342.89 $ 169,059.89 $ 174,976.99
$ 161,764.69 $ 167,426.45 $ 173,286.38 $ 179,351.40
$ 165,808.79 $ 171,612.11 $ 177,618.52 $ 183,835.16
$ 169,954.03 $ 175,902.43 $ 182,059.00 $ 188,431.08
$ 174,202.89 $ 180,300.00 $ 186,610.49 $ 193,141.86
$ 178,557.96 $ 184,807.47 $ 191,275.74 $ 197,970.39
$ 183,021.90 $ 189,427.67 $ 196,057.64 $ 202,919.65
$ 187,597.45 $ 194,163.36 $ 200,959.08 $ 207,992.65
$ 192,287.36 $ 199,017.43 $ 205,983.05 $ 213,192.46
$ 197,094.56 $ 203,992.87 $ 211,132.62 $ 218,522.28



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to sign and approve
the cost reimbursement agreement between Storey County and the Bureau of Land
Management - Carson City District Office (BLM) for the processing of the right-of-way
application for the Lead Siphon Project. Work under this agreement will not exceed
$10,100.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve the County Manager to sign
and approve the cost reimbursement agreement between Storey County and the Bureau of
Land Management - Carson City District Office (BLM) for the processing of the right-of-
way application for the Lead Siphon Project. Work under this agreement will not exceed
$10,100.

• Prepared by: Sara Sturtz

Department: Business Development     Contact Number: 775-350-9473

• Staff Summary: The cost reimbursement agreement between Storey County and the
Bureau of Land Management - Carson City District Office (BLM) will be for the
processing of the right-of-way application for the Lead Siphon Project. The BLM does
not have the specific appropriated funds to process the Lead Siphon project application
this fiscal year; however due to the County's grant funding timelines for this project, the
BLM has given the County the option to sign the cost reimbursement agreement. The
BLM has esitmated that up to 92 federal work hours may be needed to process the
application, and the direct and indirect costs to process the application would be $10,100.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

       21



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued







Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 1 of 10

COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

STOREY COUNTY
AND

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT
CARSON CITY DISTRICT OFFICE

BLM Cost Recovery Project Number LLNVC02000-5101-

I. AUTHORITY: Section 304(b) and 504(g) of the Federal Land Policy and Management
Act (FLPMA) [43 U.S.C. 1734(b) and 1764(g)], as amended and 43 CFR Subpart 2804.

II. PURPOSE: This Agreement between Storey County “Applicant” and the Bureau of
Land Management, Carson City District Office “BLM”, establishes procedures to reimburse
BLM for costs incurred to process a right-of-way application “Application”, serial number NVN-
0048420, referred to by Applicant as Storey County Siphon Replacement.  If a decision is made
to authorize a right-of-way this Agreement shall be utilized to reimburse BLM for costs incurred
to monitor the use of the right-of-way, if applicable.

III. PROVISIONS OF AGREEMENT

A. In accordance with Section 304(b) of FLPMA and 43 CFR 2804.19, Applicant agrees to
reimburse BLM for the costs incurred by BLM for processing the Application, and should a
right-of-way be approved, costs for issuing a right-of-way grant and monitoring the use of the
right-of-way, as applicable.  Further, in accordance with 43 CFR 2804.14(f), Applicant waives
consideration of reasonable costs, as would be determined under 43 CFR 2804.20 and 2804.21,
and agrees to pay all actual costs incurred by BLM related to the Application from the date the
Application was received by BLM.

B. This Agreement is subject to the Reimbursable Cost Provisions and the Descriptions of
Direct and Indirect Costs contained in Exhibit #1, the Work Plan contained in Exhibit #2, and the
Financial Plan contained in Exhibit #3.  This cost estimate may be amended should actual costs
exceed estimated costs.

C. Applicant will be advised as to the nature and extent of all major studies needed to
complete the Environmental Assessment (EA) or Environmental Impact Statement (EIS).  BLM
will prepare a separate Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to which this Agreement may be
attached and incorporated therein for any project requiring preparation of an EIS.  BLM may, at
its discretion, prepare a separate MOU for projects not requiring an EIS.

IV. EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Agreement shall be effective as of the latter date of its
execution by both parties.  Unless terminated earlier, it shall continue until the BLM authorized
officer closes the case file or determines the Agreement is no longer needed.

3
-
1
7
-
0
5 
d
r
a
f
t 
F
L
P
M
A



Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 2 of 10

V. TERMINATION:  Either party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement with
written notice to the other party; however, termination of this Agreement does not waive
Applicant’s responsibility for payment of BLM costs incurred up to the date of written notice of
termination as provided in Section IV of this Agreement.  If Applicant terminates this agreement,
their future cost obligation will cease immediately upon their written notification.  However,
Applicant will reimburse BLM for processing costs incurred by BLM in closing its review of the
Application and which cannot reasonably be avoided after BLM receives written notice of
termination of the project or withdrawal of the Application.

VI. SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT

For Applicant For BLM

(Signature) (Signature)

(Printed Name) (Printed Name)

(Title) (Title)

(Date) (Date)



Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 3 of 10

Exhibit 1

REIMBURSABLE COST PROVISIONS

A. BLM agrees to process the Application to the extent funding under the Agreement
permits.  Processing will include, but not be limited to, the following: coordination,
administration and approval of any necessary environmental analyses including the preparation
of an EA or EIS; consultation with appropriate Federal, State, Tribal, and local officials;
preparation of the administrative record and resolving any protests, appeals and litigation that
might result from the proposal, preparation of all decisions and authorizations resulting from
those decisions, monitoring the operation and termination of any resultant authorization; and
other necessary processing actions consistent with a final decision.

B. Applicant agrees to fund and utilize third party assistance contractors to expedite
processing the Application, as needed.  Third party assistance contractors may include, but are
not limited to, contractors for preparation of National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
documents, cultural resource inventories, biological inventories and surveys, engineering and
design surveys, clerical staff support, NEPA adequacy reviews, resource specialist reviews,
persons to aid in assembling the case file record, and compliance inspectors.

C. If requested, BLM agrees to timely notify Applicant, in writing, of any changes to the
indirect rate.  Refer to the Definition of Direct and Indirect Costs below.

D. BLM shall review monthly case processing and costs incurred.  When BLM determines
there are insufficient funds remaining for the next period of planned work, it shall inform
Applicant of the work proposed to be done and request a further deposit.  Deposits must be
received prior to BLM incurring costs.

E. Statements of BLM expenditures will be furnished to Applicant within 30 days of any
such request.

F. Applicant shall have the right to conduct, at their own expense, reasonable audits of the
books, records, and documents of BLM relating to the items on any particular accounting
statement provided by BLM.  Applicant shall have 30 days after receipt of a statement to raise
objections to or dispute any particular entry of cost item.

G. BLM shall provide full justification of any disputed entry or cost item within 30 days of
receipt of the objection or will delete the entry or cost item.  If Applicant still objects to the entry
or cost item, an appeal to the State Director may be made within 30 days of receipt of the BLM
justification.  The State Director’s decision is the final administrative decision.

H. Reimbursable funds, once obligated by BLM, are not refundable and will not be made
refundable by termination of the project, withdrawal of the Application, or non-issuance of a
grant.

I. In accordance with 43 CFR 2804.27(a), if BLM denies the Application, Applicant must



Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 4 of 10

reimburse BLM for all costs BLM incurred in processing the Application.  If Applicant 
withdraws the Application, Applicant will reimburse BLM for processing costs incurred by BLM 
in closing its review of the Application and which cannot reasonably be avoided after BLM 
receives written notice of withdrawal of the Application.

J. Nothing herein shall be deemed to require BLM to maintain books, records, or
documents other than those usually maintained by them, provided that such books, records, and
documents reasonably segregate and identify the costs for which reimbursement is required and
comply with generally accepted accounting practices for such documentation.

K. The designated points of contact with whom each party to this Agreement will
communicate concerning any aspect of this Agreement are as follows:

BLM Applicant
Name: Chris Searle 

Realty Specialist 
Carson City District Office

Name: Jason Wierzbicki
Storey County 
Virginia City 

Address: 5665 Morgan Mill Road Carson 
City, Nevada 89701

Address: 26 S. B Street
PO Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440

Telephone: 775-885-6080 Telephone: 775-847-0958
Fax: Fax:
Email: Csearle@blm.gov Email: jwierzbicki@storeycounty.org

Either party may designate a different point of contact by notifying the other party in writing of 
such change.

DESCRIPTION OF DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS

Direct costs are those costs which can be specifically identified with the Application and which 
are incurred for the benefit of said applicant in that the costs would not have been incurred but 
for the Application and are appropriate in order for BLM to process the Application.  Examples 
of direct costs include, but are not limited to, personnel costs in the form of wages paid to BLM 
personnel working on the Application, with allowances provided for fringe benefits and leave 
surcharge rate and any overtime associated with processing the Application; travel expenses; 
purchased services, if necessary, such as printing, automated data processing services and 
photographic reproduction; and any miscellaneous supplies and equipment of a specialized 
nature, the use of which is directly applicable to processing the Application.

Indirect costs are those which cannot be specifically identified with the Application.  These 
indirect costs have been calculated at a rate of 20.58 percent of direct costs.  The indirect costs 
are subject to change annually.  This percentage figure has been developed in accordance with 
Department of the Interior procedures and represents those administrative and program costs, 
excluding management overhead, which can be attributed to processing the Application.  Indirect 
costs include a portion of the costs for capitalized and non-capitalized equipment; space rental; 



Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 5 of 10

telephone services; postage; personnel transfer costs; budget and program development; 
administrative and clerical support; training; safety management; public information, inquiries 
and reports; cartography and basic series mapping; aviation management; telecommunications; 
maintenance of equipment and tools; and systems design and implementation.

Excluded from indirect costs are costs for managerial work; evaluations of field office activities; 
program coordination; technical program direction; environmental education; interagency 
planning; studies and research; preparation of environmental documents relating to general 
program planning; law enforcement and firefighting.



Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 6 of 10

Exhibit 2
Work Plan for (Storey County Siphon Replacement)

The following work plan describes the major tasks that BLM must complete to process the 
Application, including estimated time spans needed for BLM to complete their work on major 
tasks.  Work that Applicant will be responsible for and the time Applicant will need to complete 
their work are not accounted for.  Applicant work may include baseline resource studies, 
document revisions, or fulfilling BLM information requests.  Lists contained within this work 
plan are for example purposes and are not intended to be exhaustive or limiting.

Schedule of Major Processing Tasks
Time estimates for each task represents the minimum time span BLM would reasonably need to 
complete the task, subject to the project timeline limitations and work plan assumptions 
described below.  The tasks and time estimates are subject to change as the Application is 
processed.  This schedule is not intended to be used to determine start or completion dates.

PROCESSING TASK

ESTIMATED 
BLM TIME
REQUIRED

1. Application Review: Application and Plan of Development (POD) review,
complete initial adjudication, establish cost reimbursement account, etc.
Milestone: all initial adjudication work completed and WBS code activated.

2-4 Weeks

2. Pre-NEPA and Baseline: Application review by interdisciplinary (ID)
team, field visits, provide suggestions for POD revisions, begin external
agency coordination, prepare MOU for NEPA document preparation,
determine baseline resource studies, review baseline resource studies,
preliminary issue scoping, etc.
Milestone: signed MOU for NEPA document preparation and EA kickoff meeting.

4-6 Weeks

3. NEPA and Consultation: Review administrative drafts of NEPA
documentation (CX) and provide comments, attend meetings, continue
external agency coordination, assist with reviewing and responding to public
comments, consult with regulatory agencies, prepare and issue NEPA
decision, etc.
Milestone: NEPA decision and all regulatory compliance and external agency coordination 
complete.

6-8 Weeks

4. Decision Issuance: Prepare right-of-way grant package, approve
performance bond instrument, prepare monitoring fee determination,
complete final adjudication, etc.
Milestone: right-of-way grant issued (subject to decision making).

4-6 Weeks

5. Administration: Budget oversight, maintenance of records, completing
reporting requirements, final adjudication, records notation, etc.

Ongoing



Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 7 of 10

The tasks in the above schedule are intended to provide a general timeline and examples of the 
type of work that will be required to process the Application.  In general, the tasks must be 
completed in the order shown; BLM may adjust when certain tasks are initiated, as needed.  Not 
all work needed to complete each task is shown; BLM will determine the work and personnel 
needed as the Application is processed.

Project timeline limitations:
The Application is not given specific priority over other BLM work.  BLM will work on the 
Application when required information is available and as other work priorities allow.  The need 
to respond to national, state, and local priority projects, including supporting seasonal wildland 
fire operations, may cause BLM, without notice, to delay or stop working on the Application for 
an extended and unpredictable amount of time.

BLM’s ability to complete processing tasks in the estimated amount of time would be limited by 
Applicant’s ability to complete actions Applicant is responsible for.  BLM will inform Applicant 
when work on the Application cannot proceed due to the need for additional information or 
actions from Applicant.  The time to process the project will increase directly by the amount of 
time taken by Applicant to supply additional information or complete actions needed by BLM.  
BLM’s ability to process the project would be limited by funding and coordinating staff 
availability.

If BLM determines at any point in the NEPA process that a FONSI cannot be reached, BLM will 
inform Applicant that an EIS will be required to approve the Application.

Work plan assumptions:
NOTE: the following list does not specifically correspond to the items shown in the above table.

1) BLM Lands and Realty personnel will conduct case document review, legal source
material review, data entry, communication with Applicant or stakeholders (e.g. other
Federal government agencies; State, County, and local government entities; members of
the public; etc.); facilitate ID review of the Application, prepare official correspondence
and right-of-way grant documentation; and maintain the administrative record.

BLM resource specialists will conduct ID review of the Application including:
identifying potential resource issues or missing data; coordination with appropriate
regulatory agencies (e.g. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO), Nevada State Engineer, Nevada Commission on Mineral
Resources, etc.); reviewing NEPA documents; and preparing reports.

2) Applicant will provide and revise technical drawings, POD, survey drawings, and other
information specific to the Application when requested by BLM, in the format requested
by BLM.  BLM will provide feedback on information submitted by Applicant in a timely
manner so corrections or changes can be made with as little delay as practicable.



Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 8 of 10

3) Applicant will complete all needed baseline studies as determined by BLM during
Internal Review and EA Preparation.  Applicant may hire a qualified environmental
contractor to complete baseline studies.  BLM will approve contractors when appropriate
and will review baseline studies for quality.  Baseline studies that may be needed include:

 Wildlife surveys, including Threatened and Endangered (T&E) species, migratory
birds, BLM sensitive species, and general wildlife

 Botanical surveys, including T&E and BLM sensitive species
 Biological Assessment for USFWS review
 Class III cultural resources inventories and cultural report
 Hydrology and/or water rights reports
 Visual Resources Inventory and/or Visual Contrast Rating
 Mineral Potential Report and/or mining claim report
 Socioeconomic and/or market reports
 Boundary evidence research and/or cadastral surveys

Certain baseline studies are weather or season dependent and may not be acceptable to 
BLM if completed during the wrong time of year or without proper authorization from 
BLM.  BLM will determine when enough data has been collected to complete an 
environmental effects analysis in an EA or comply with agency regulatory requirements.

4) Applicant will prepare an EA.  Applicant may hire a qualified environmental contractor
to prepare the EA.  Applicant will ensure all drafts of the EA are proofread and free of
grammar/formatting errors before submitting documents to BLM.  BLM will review
documents and provide direction on needed changes, including content and formatting
requirements specific to the Carson City District Office (CCDO).  BLM will determine
the duration of the public review period for the EA.

A MOU will be prepared prior to beginning the NEPA process.

5) Applicant will prepare draft FONSI and draft DR documents.



Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 9 of 10

Exhibit 3
Financial Plan for Storey County Siphon Replacement 

Potential direct costs are based on the estimated man-hours and operating expenses, including 
travel expenses, to complete the tasks described in Exhibit 2.  BLM labor hours that may be 
billed to Applicant are estimated based on staff knowledge, existing workload levels, and BLM 
priorities at the time that the Work Plan in Exhibit 2 was created.  Some BLM personnel that are 
not shown may charge to the project if needed.

Estimated costs may change as the Application is processed.  BLM would revise the cost 
estimates only if additional travel or labor costs may cause BLM to exceed the existing account 
balance.  The following cost estimates are not broken down to task or BLM fiscal quarter.

Cost Assumptions
Hourly billing rates for GS grade levels:

GS-5 GS-7 GS-9 GS-11 GS-12 GS-13
$34.06 $41.83 $54.52 $73.35 $83.39 $99.53

Rates current as of 3/1/2023
Support Services overhead rate1: 20% of all direct labor costs
Round-trip distance2 from Carson City District Office to project site: 60 miles
2020 GSA Fixed Ownership Rate3 (FOR) for full size pickup truck: $.31 per mile
2024 Indirect Costs Rate4: 20.58% of direct costs
1) Support Services overhead covers labor costs for management oversight, budget, timekeeping, fleet management, and other Carson City

District Office labor that is not directly billed to the project account.
2) From Google Maps website.
3) Most current FOR will be used for all mileage costs.  Rate covers all fuel and fleet costs, except labor, for a single vehicle.
4) Indirect cost rate subject to change annually.

BLM Labor Costs

Cost Source Cost Method
GS 

Grade Estimated Hours
Estimated 

Costs
Realty Specialist Hourly Billing 7 40 $2,934.00
Land Law Examiner Hourly Billing 9 3 $163.56
P&EC (NEPA) Hourly Billing 12 3 $250.17
Assistant Field Manager Hourly Billing 12 2 $333.56
Field Manager Hourly Billing 13 1 $99.53
Fire and Fuels Management Hourly Billing 11 0 $0.00
Archaeologist Hourly Billing 11 20 $1,467.00
Botanist Hourly Billing 11 2 $146.7
Environmental Compliance 
Specialist Hourly Billing 11 2 $146.7
Geologist Hourly Billing 11 1 $73.35
Hydrologist Hourly Billing 11 2 $146.7
Outdoor Recreation Planner Hourly Billing 11 2 $146.7
Rangeland Mgmt Specialist Hourly Billing 11 2 $146.7



Storey County
Cost Reimbursement Agreement

NVNV 105960560 – Page 10 of 10

Wild Horse and Burro Specialist Hourly Billing 11 0 $0.00
Wildlife Biologist Hourly Billing 11 10 $733.50
GIS Specialist Hourly Billing 11 2 $146.7
Cadastral Surveyor Hourly Billing 11 0 $0.00
Budget Analyst Hourly Billing 11 0 $0.00

Subtotal direct labor costs: $6,934.87

BLM Travel/Operating Costs
Estimated Trips Vehicles per Trip Estimated Vehicle Costs

2 1 $37.20

Cost Summary
Carson City District Labor Costs: $6,934.87

Carson City District Travel/Operating Costs: $37.20
Other Labor Costs: $0.00

Other Travel/Operating Costs: $0.00
Subtotal Direct Costs $6,972.07

Support Services Overhead Costs: $1,386.97
Indirect Rate Costs: $1,720.29

Total Estimated Costs: $10,079.34
Rounded to: $10,100



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to make a conditional offer to purchase the
property located at 300 Italy Drive in McCarren Nevada, APN 005-091-67, based upon
the appraisal dated November 13, 2024, by Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA Certified
General Appraiser, including approval of opening escrow, and completing a title search,
not to exceed $3,800,000 and approximately $280,000 in applicable closing costs.

• Recommended motion: Consideration and possible approval to make a conditional offer
to purchase the property located at 300 Italy Drive in McCarren Nevada, APN 005-091-
67, based upon the appraisal dated November 13, 2024, by Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA
Certified General Appraiser, including approval of opening escrow, and completing a
title search, not to exceed $3,800,000 and approximately $280,000 in applicable closing
costs.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire     Contact Number: 7753991746

• Staff Summary: The building located at 300 Italy Drive currently features eight
apparatus bays and ample space to accommodate the District’s future growth in our
largest demand area, the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (TRIC). With its strategic location
and the size of the property, this site offers significant potential to enhance the Storey
County Fire Protection District’s operational capabilities.

•
• Situated on approximately five acres, the property (APN 005-091-68) is centrally located

within TRIC, providing an ideal position to improve response times to high-demand
areas. Relocating to this site would allow us to vacate the current Fire Station 75,
establish a new modernized station, and relocate our training props with plenty of room
for expansion. This move would enhance operational efficiency and ensure we are well-
prepared for increasing service demands.

•
• While the building will require tenant improvements to meet our operational

requirements, it provides a solid foundation for a facility that can support both our current
and future needs. We have received a very high-end estimation for the completion of the
fire station to bring it up to a state of operational readiness that was estimated to be $7.5
million.

•

      23



• The purchase of this property is based on the appraised value provided by Anthony J.
Wren, MAI, SRA, Certified General Appraiser. After reviewing the appraisal and
considering the strategic advantages of this site, it is the staff's recommendation to
proceed with the purchase of the property.

•
• We propose providing AMB Real Estate LLC with a conditional offer letter for their

review to initiate the acquisition process.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
145 North “C” Street

P.O. Box 603
Virginia City, NV  89440

(775) 847-0954 Phone • (775) 847-0987 Fax

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, the Storey County Fire Protection District is prohibited from discriminating on the basis of 
race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office 

of Civil Rights, Room 326-W, Whitten Building, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or
call (202) 720-5964 (voice and TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

The Storey County Fire Protection District is an equal opportunity provider.

Serving Storey County Since 1861

January 7, 2025

Re: Conditional Offer of Purchase for 300 Italy Drive, McCarran Nevada

AMB Real Estate LLC:

In accordance with a property appraisal dated November 13, 2024, by Anthony J. Wren, MAI, 
SRA Certified General Appraiser, and conditioned upon approval by the Board of Fire Commissioners in 
accordance with NRS 244.275 authorizing the District to purchase real property after its value has been 
established by a sworn appraiser selected pursuant to Storey County Code 2.22, Storey County Fire 
Protection District hereby provides a conditional offer of purchase of the building located at 300 Italy 
Drive, McCarren Nevada (APN 005-091-67) not to exceed $3,500,000. 

This offer is also conditioned upon the following items: (1) Storey County Fire District having 
available budget funds for the purchase; (2) a clear title search of the property is obtained; (3) the Board 
of Fire Commissioners approval; and (4), and other conditions to be discussed. 

This conditional offer is valid for 10 days from the date of this letter (until January 17, 2025). 

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. Please reach out to me with any 
questions you may have.

Regards,

Jeremy B. Loncar
Fire Chief

Enclosures: Property Appraisal 

Copied: Commission Chairman, Jay Carmona

Storey District Attorney’s Office

Storey County Comptroller



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Discussion and possible approval to utilize available funds from the Capital
Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer that were not budgeted for in the
FY 2024 budget, but outlined in the district CIP, not to exceed $300,000.

• Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve available funds from
the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer that were not budgeted
for in the FY 2024 budget, not to exceed $300,000.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire     Contact Number: 7753991746

• Staff Summary: To support SCFPD’s operational needs, the FY 2025/2026 CIP includes
the proposed acquisition of a new tractor and trailer to modernize and support the
expansion of the Wildland Division fleet. However, to meet current operational demands,
the District is seeking approval to utilize available Capital Projects Funds for the
unbudgeted purchase of these items, not to exceed $300,000.

•
• This request has been accelerated because SCFPD was able to secure an additional Cat

D7G dozer for fire suppression from NDF and the FEPP/FPP program. Currently, the
Wildland Division does not have the fleet capacity to transport multiple dozers
simultaneously, even in instances all staffing requirements are met. Initial CIP estimates
projected the cost for new units at $400,000, but further assessment and outreach has
identified bid assistance and cost savings.

•
• This upgrade will enhance equipment reliability, reduce maintenance costs, and improve

the safe, efficient transport of heavy machinery to emergency incidents. By expanding the
Wildland Division fleet, SCFPD will strengthen operational readiness for daily activities
and emergency responses, avoid unnecessary travel constraints and downtime, and align
with the goals outlined in the District CIP.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: 300,000

      24



• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout
Storey County.

• Recommended motion: Discussion only.

• Prepared by: Jason Wierzbicki

Department: Public Works     Contact Number: 7758470958

• Staff Summary: Discussion of roads and highways throughout the county.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       26



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Possible acceptance of a bid for replacement of fuel tanks and pumps at 100 Toll
Road and 1705 Peru Drive, from LA Perks Petroleum, in the amount of $686,007.00.
The acceptance of this bid will allow staff to issue a Notice of Intent to Award to the
apparent low bidder and solicit a contract for construction for legal review.  Upon legal
approval, the contract will be brought before this board for approval.

• Recommended motion: I, [commissioner], move to approve and accept this bid from LA
Perks Petroleum in an amount not to exceed $686,007.00 for the replacement of fuel
tanks and pumps at 100 Toll Road and 1705 Peru Drive.  The acceptance of this bid will
allow staff to issue a Notice of Intent to Award to the apparent low bidder and solicit a
contract for construction for legal review.  Upon legal approval, the contract will be
brought before this board for approval.

• Prepared by: Mike Northan

Department: Public Works     Contact Number: 775 230 4255

• Staff Summary: See attached staff report

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: 686,007

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       28









































Fuel Tanks and Pumps Replacement Project

P4-13

PWP ST-2025-083

Bid results staff report

Present:

Mike Northan

Trent Skretta

On December 17, 2024 at 14:00 hours, staff received sealed bids for the above project.  
Of four plan-holders, only one submitted a bid.  The bid was responsive and contained 
all required documents.  The base bid amount is $686,007.00.  The budgeted amount 
for the project was $630,000.

After deliberations with staff, and in consideration of the unique qualifications of the 
bidder, the elapsed time from the determination of the budget amount, the unlikely 
chance of receiving lower bids, the comptroller has agreed to adjust the budget amount 
to meet the submitted bid.

Staff therefore recommends that we accept the bid from LA Perks Petroleum and solicit 
a contract for the work from them for legal review and execution.

Next steps:

BOCC agenda request to accept the bid and clarify the budget. (Jan 7)

Issue Notice of Intent to Award

Begin submittals review

Request contract form from LA Perks – must incorporate bid documents by reference

Legal review

BOCC agenda request to accept and award contract (Jan 21)

Notify Office of Labor Commissioner

Determine start date.



Bid Tabulation Fuel Tanks and Pumps Replacement Bid Date 17DEC24
PWP ST 2025‐083

P4‐13
Bidders 5% Adjusted

Bidder Bid Form Storey Bus lic State Bus W9 Bond Price Preference Price
Base $686,007.00 N/A

x x x x x Alt
Base
Alt
Base
Alt
Base
Alt
Base
Alt
Base
Alt
Base
Alt
Base
Alt
Base
Alt
Base
Alt

LA Perks Petroleum Yes



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10  minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For Consideration and possible approval of acceptance of the 2024 Winter Grant
round from the Nevada State Off Highway Vehicles Commission for the grant amount of
$28,065.78 for the Storey County Sheriff's Office, Off Highway Vehicle Operations Unit.

• Recommended motion: I (insert name) motion to approve the receipt of grant funds of
$28,065.78 from the Nevada State Off Highway Vehicles Commission 2024 Winter
Grant Round for the Storey County Sheriff's Office Off Highway Operations Unit. This
grant will be used to purchase equipment to enhance this units response to off highway
incidents and for community outreach.

• Prepared by: Sheriff Mike Cullen

Department: Sheriff     Contact Number: 7758470959

• Staff Summary: The Storey County Sheriff's Office has applied for and has been granted
funds from the 2024 Winter Grant Round of the Nevada State Off Highway Vehicles
Commission. Thes funds will allow the Sheriffs Office to puchase one off road quad
vehicle, a trailer for transportation and storage of that vehicle and miscellaneous
eductational and out reach materials along with other items of equipment including
communication gear for current OHV units in use at the Sheriff's Office.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

      29



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



































































From: Kaden Barmore <kbarmore@ohv.nv.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2024 11:46 AM
To: Brooke Beaumont <bbeaumont@storeycounty.org>
Subject: 2024 Nevada OHV Grant Program Recipient Award

Hi SGT. Beaumont,

Thank you for applying for the 2024 Winter Commission on Off-Highway Vehicles Grant 
Program through the Nevada Off-Highway Vehicles Program (NVOHV) and the Nevada Division 
of Outdoor Recreation (NDOR) for the Storey County NRS 490 Enforcement and Education. We 
are excited to inform you that your project has been selected by the Commission to receive an 
award in the amount of $28,065.78. This funding was made possible by off-highway vehicle 
registration fees throughout the state.

There was a total of 15 applications requesting over $1.5 million in project funding, with only 
$750,000 available to award. It was an extremely competitive pool of applicants, and we 
appreciate your interest in the program and the time commitment required by the application 
process.

We will contact you in the coming weeks to work out the details and stipulations of the 
NVOHV grant agreement. We will send a follow-up email providing awardees with 
information on next steps, including the funding agreement, progress report form, and 
payment reimbursement (outlay) form.

We look forward to working with your organization toward successful completion of this 
project.  Please feel free to contact me 775-684-2794 or kbarmore@ohv.nv.gov to 
discuss any questions or concerns that you have throughout the project.

Happy trails,

Kaden Barmore (He/Him)
Off-Highway Vehicles Program Manager

Nevada Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
901 S. Stewart Street, Ste. 1003
Carson City, NV 89701
(E) kbarmore@ohv.nv.gov
(O) (775) 684-2794

mailto:kbarmore@ohv.nv.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http://dcnr.nv.gov/&c=E,1,jucuVTAWUd1FGBrFy9Zk6TAb7SfKUczccPzlz_fTHQH8BnGe9-VweKFGnuZPzEmLIQhQIg1DalCiiipP7QYXf3vJeq--uq5Wmxt9mL0Mk3S2o4Sqhz-wHXBY&typo=1
mailto:kbarmore@ohv.nv.gov


Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5-10 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For Consideration and possible approval of receipt of a donation for the Storey
County Sheriff's Office for the purchase of a traffic unit for patrol, emergency response
and community outreach.

• Recommended motion: I (Insert name) motion to approve the receiprt of a donation of
$25,000 from Thomas and Debra Hayward for the purpose of a vehicle purchase for the
Storey County Sheriff's Office for traffic enforcement, emergency response and
community outreach.

• Prepared by: Sheriff Mike Cullen

Department: Sheriff     Contact Number: 7758470959

• Staff Summary: The Storey County Sheriff's Office wishes to receive a $25,000
donation so that they can purchase a specific 2023 Dodge Challenger for $25,000. The
donation is from Thomas and Debra Hayward. This vehicle will be used specifically for
traffic enforcement, emergency response and community outreach.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       30



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval authorizing the County Manager to sign and
approve an amendment to an existing 2024-2025 contract between Storey County and
Silver State Government Relations for lobbying and government affairs services during
the Nevada legislative interim and general sessions for $6,500 per month effective July 1,
2024, through December 31, 2024, and $10,000 per month effective January 1, 2025,
through June 30, 2025.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to authorize the County Manager to
sign and approve an amendment to an existing 2024-2025 contract between Storey
County and Silver State Government Relations for lobbying and government affairs
services during the Nevada legislative interim and general sessions for $6,500 per month
effective July 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024, and $10,000 per month effective
January 1, 2025, through June 30, 2025.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: Silver State Government Relations (SSGR) has served on the Storey
County government affairs team and provided direct lobbying services throughout the
last several state legislative sessions and interim legislative periods. In addition to direct
lobbying efforts, the firm facilitated engagements between Storey County officials and
state legislators, county and city leaders, and other agents throughout Nevada and the
region during regular session and interim periods. These engagements have occurred
regularly throughout each year providing direct access and essential representation with
leaders influencing or making legislative and policy decisions affecting Storey County.
These services will continue as such under the proposed successor agreement.

•
• SSGR will promote Storey County Senate Bill 69 in the 2025 session and will continue to

represent the county protecting “SB1 (2024)” post-abatement property tax revenues and
preserving the county’s autonomy in business development, permitting, land use matters,
master planning, and growth. The firm will also continue its team approach representing
the county on various legislative affairs regarding transportation, housing, land use
planning, broadband fiber infrastructure, and water resources, as well as other legislative
bills potentially affecting the county. The firm will also continue expanding its resources
to assist the county with water resource-related matters including, but not limited to, the

      31



Marlette Water System. 

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible authorization for the County Manager to sign and
approve a contract from 01/07/25 through 12/31/25 between Storey County and Sam
Shad Productions producing and airing with Nevada Newsmakers a series of television
commercials, website banners and links, audio and video podcasts and Youtube clips, and
social media outreach programs for a total cost of $200,000 as specified in the attached
draft contract and scope of work, with an audience focus toward Nevada legislative
officials and state, county, and local leadership.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to authorize the County Manager to
sign and approve a contract from 01/07/25 through 12/31/25 between Storey County and
Sam Shad Productions producing and airing with Nevada Newsmakers a series of
television commercials, website banners and links, audio and video podcasts and
Youtube clips, and social media outreach programs for a total cost of $200,000 as
specified in the attached draft contract and scope of work, with an audience focus toward
Nevada legislative officials and state, county, and local leadership.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: Veteran broadcaster Sam Shad is the host of Nevada Newsmakers, the
state’s premier news and political discussion program. Sam has been covering Nevada
politics on radio, television and online (as well as via podcasts) for nearly 30 years.

• Sam Shad has over 20 years of experience promoting and working with Storey County
and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, and his production program is well-suited to
educating state legislators and other area leaders of the needs of Storey County, how the
county relates to the northern Nevada region, and how it may be affected by certain
proposed bills and other actions of the legislature. The television ads shown in the
attached scope of work will run around the time of airing of Nevada Newsmakers which
coincides with working hours of state legislators.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

      32



• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

A CONTRACT BETWEEN 

STOREY COUNTY 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF STOREYCOUNTY 

(COUNTY) 

AND 

SAM SHAD, OBA SAM SHAD PRODUCTIONS 
(CONTRACTOR) 

WHEREAS, Storey County (hereinafter County), a political subdivision of the State of 
Nevada, from time to time requires the services of independent contractors; and 

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services of Sam Shad OBA Sam Shad Productions. 
(hereinafter Contractor) herein specified are both necessary and desirable and in the best interests 
of County; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is duly qualified, equipped, staffed, ready, willing 
and able to perform and render the services as described in the attached Scope of Work; 

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements herein made, the parties mutually 
agree as follows: 

1. EFFECTIVE DATE OF CONTRACT. This contract shall be effective the ____7th____ day of
_January____ 2025, through the __31st_____ day of__December,_____ 2025.

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. The parties agree that Contractor, its associates and
employees shall have the status of an independent contractor. As an independent contractor,
Contractor is not a Storey County employee and that there shall be no:

(1) Withholding of income taxes by the County;
(2) Industrial insurance coverage provided by the County;
(3) Participation in group insurance plans which may be available to employees of the
County;
(4) Participation or contributions by either the independent contractor or the County to
the public employees' retirement system;
(5) Accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave;
(6) Unemployment compensation coverage provided by the County if the requirements
of NRS 612.085 for independent contractors are met.

3. RIGHTS. Contractor and County agree to the following rights consistent with an independent
contractor relationship:

a. Contractor has the right to perform services for others during the term of this
Agreement.
b. Contractor has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner and method
by which the services required by this Agreement will be performed.
c. Contractor shall not be assigned a work location on County premises.
d. Contractor, at Contractor's sole expense, will furnish all equipment and materials



2 

used to provide the services required by this Agreement. 
e. Contractor, at Contractor's sole expense, has the right to hire assistants as
subcontractors, or to use Contractor's employees to provide the services required by
this Agreement.
f. Contractor or Contractor's employees or contract personnel shall perform the
services required by this Agreement, and Contractor agrees to the faithful
performance and delivery of described services in accordance with the time frames
contained herein.
g. Neither Contractor nor Contractor's employees or contract personnel shall receive
any training from County in the skills necessary to perform the services required by
this Agreement.
h. County shall not require Contractor or Contractor's employees or contract
personnel to devote full time to performing the services required by this Agreement.

Contractor further certifies the following: 

i. Contractor is licensed by the State of Nevada or other political subdivision to
provide similar services to other clients/customers.
j. Contractor understands that it is solely responsible to pay any federal and state
taxes and/or any social security or related payments applicable to money received for
services provided under the terms of this contract. Contractor understands that an
IRS Form I 099 will be filed by County for all payments County makes to Contractor.

4. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE.
Contractor agrees to maintain required workers compensation coverage throughout the 

entire term of the contract. 

5. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE. Contractor shall maintain general liability insurance in
the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00).

6. SERVICES To BE PERFORMED. The parties agree that the services to be performed are as
set forth in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A.

7. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES. Contractor agrees to provide the services set forth in Attachment A
for a total amount of $200,000.00. The Contractor will submit invoices to the County in the month of
January 2025, for $100,000.00 and in the month of April 2025, for $100,000.00. Payments by the
County shall be made within 30 days of receipt of each invoice. Contractor shall be responsible for all
other expenses incurred while performing services under this Agreement, including without
limitation licenses fees, memberships and dues; airtime costs; automobile and other travel
expenses; and insurance premiums.

8. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT. This contract may be revoked without cause by either party
prior to the date set forth in paragraph (2), provided that a revocation shall not be effective until
30 days after a party has served written notice upon the other party. The Contractor shall submit
invoices for work performed to the date notice was given.

9. CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT. This contract shall be construed and interpreted according to
the laws of the State of Nevada. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be resolved by binding
arbitration, with an arbiter selected from a list maintained by the Nevada Supreme Court of



3 

senior/retired judges, with both parties to pay their own attorney fees. If the parties cannot agree 
on an arbiter, then the party defending the controversy shall make the ultimate decision on the 
arbiter. There shall be no presumption for or against the drafter in interpreting or enforcing this 
Contract. 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS. Contractor shall fully and completely comply with
all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations, orders, or requirements of any sort in
carrying out the obligations of this contract, including, but not limited to, all federal, state, and
local accounting procedures and requirements and all immigration and naturalization laws

11. ASSIGNMENT. Contractor shall neither assign, transfer nor delegate any rights, obligations or
duties under this contract without the prior written consent of the County.

12. COUNTY INSPECTION. The books, records, documents and accounting procedures and
practices of Contractor related to this contract shall be subject to inspection, examination and
audit by the County.

13. DISPOSITION OF CONTRACT MATERIALS. Any books, reports, studies, photographs,
negatives or other documents, data, or other materials prepared by or supplied to Contractor in
the performance of its obligations under this contract shall be the exclusive property of the
County and all such materials shall be remitted and delivered, at Contractor's expense, by
Contractor to the County upon completion of the project, or termination or cancellation of this
contract.

14. PUBLIC RECORDS LAW. Contractor expressly agrees that all documents submitted, filed, or
deposited with the County by Contractor, unless designated as confidential by a specific statue of
the State of Nevada, shall be treated as public records pursuant to NRS Chapter 239 and shall be
available for inspection and copying by any person, as defined in NRS § 0.039, or any
governmental entity.

15. Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form,
produced, prepared, observed or received by CONTRACTOR to the extent that such information
is confidential by law or otherwise required by this Contract.

16. INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor agrees to indemnify and save and hold the County, its agents
and employees harmless from any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from the
performance of this contract by Contractor or Contractor's agents or employees. The County
agrees to indemnify and save and hold the Contractor, its agents and employees harmless from
any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from the performance of this contract by
County or County's agents or employees.

17. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT. This contract constitutes the entire contract between the
parties and may only be modified by a written amendment signed by the parties and approved by
the Board of County Commissioners.

18. NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given 3 days after mailing



4 

by United States, postage prepaid, first class mail addressed to the other party at the addresses set 
forth below: 

FOR COUNTY: 
Storey County 
P.O. Box 176 
Virginia City, Nevada 89440  
(775) 847-0968
Fax: (775)847-0949

FOR CONTRACTOR: 
Sam Shad Productions 
P. 0. Box 10853
Reno, Nevada 89510

19. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that this Agreement incorporates the
attached Exhibit A.

20. SEVERABILITY. The illegality or invalidity of any provision or portion of this Agreement
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement and this Agreement shall be
construed as if such provision did not exist and the non-enforceability of such provision shall not
be held to render any other provision or provisions of the Agreement unenforceable.

21. No APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS. All payments and services provided under this agreement are
contingent upon the availability of the necessary public funding. In the event that Storey County
does not receive the funding necessary to perform in accord with the terms of this Agreement, this
Agreement shall automatically terminate and all fees due and owing shall be paid.

22. AUTHORIZATION TO SIGN. Both parties represent that the persons signing this agreement are
duly authorized to do so.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be signed and 
intend to be legally bound thereby. 

STOREY COUNTY 

By: Austin Osborne, 
Storey County Manager 

Sam Shad dba Sam Shad Productions 

By: __________________ 

Print Name: ___________ 

Date: _________________ 

Date 

___________________________ 
Date 



5 

ATTACHMENT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Contractor Shall: 

1.  In consultation with County and its lobbyists, 1,040 commercials per annum, including
bonuses, as approved by the County of thirty to sixty seconds in length, or potentially up to
two minutes in length, shall be aired and published per this scope of work.

2.  The commercials pursuant to Subsection 1 above will be published on the Nevada
Newsmakers television programs statewide, and the Nevada Newsmakers website, audio
and video webcasts, podcasts, and YouTube channel.

 Four packages a week will be aired through December 31, 2025.

3. A banner will be provided by Storey County or an existing banner provided earlier,
meeting the size and dimension requirements of the Contractor, will be displayed on the
Nevada Newsmakers website. The banner will also serve as a hyperlink to the Storey
County webpage featuring related materials. The County will be responsible for
maintaining its webpage and related content.

4. The commercials, advertisements, and banner described in this scope of work will be
published as described from the beginning of this contact through December 31, 2025.



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Possible approval amending the list of county appointments to serve on state,
county, and regional boards and committees, and filling vacancies on the Virginia City
Tourism Commission for the 2025 calendar year.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to approve the list of appointments
recommended by staff in the enclosure herewith to serve on state, county, and regional
boards and committees, and the Virginia City Tourism Commission, for the 2025
calendar year.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: The attached list indicates the recommended changes to the list of
appointments for various boards and committees for calendar year 2025. This
recommendation will also consider filling one of two vacancies – the “Business District
Merchant” representative – on the Virginia City Tourism Commission (VCTC). County
staff are still reviewing applications for the VCTC “At-Large” representative vacancy, for
which a recommendation will be ready at a future board meeting.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

      33



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Page 1 of 1 

List of Storey County Board and Committee Appointments for 2025 
Amended 01/07/25 

1. Legislative Representative – Clay Mitchell, Jay Carmona, and Austin Osborne, including
department heads, elected officials, lobbyists, and staff as needed.

2. Nevada-NACO – Jay Carmona with Lance Gilman Donny Gilman as alternate.
3. Nevadaworks – Lance Gilman with Donny Gilman with Lara Mather as alternate.
4. Friends of Storey County Senior Center Board – Lance Gilman Donny Gilman.
5. Storey County Safety Committee Chair – Bryan Sandoval.
6. Comstock Cemetery Foundation Board – Caitlin Best.
7. Carson Water Subconservancy District – Jim Hindle with Austin Osborne as alternate.
8. State Land Use Planning Advisory Council (SLUPAC) – Kathy Canfield
9. Natural Resources Conservation Services (NRCS/USDA) – Kathy Canfield
10. Washoe-Storey Conservation District – Kathy Canfield
11. Truckee River Flood Management Authority, Technical Advisory Committee – Lance Gilman

Donny Gilman with Kathy Canfield as alternate.
12. Comstock Historic District Commission – Clay Mitchell.
13. Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway – Clay Mitchell.
14. Saint Mary’s Art Center – Jay Carmona.
15. Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board – Clay Mitchell.
16. Economic Development Authority of Western Nevada (EDAWN) – Austin Osborne Donny

Gilman, with Austin Osborne as alternate.
17. Western Nevada Development District (WNDD) (Elected official seat) – Clay Mitchell.
18. Western Nevada Development District (WNDD) (Appointed official seat) – Sara Sturtz.
19. Nevada Governor’s Workforce Development Board (Rural representative) – Lara Mather.
20. Northern Nevada Development Authority (NNDA) (elected official seat) – Clay Mitchell Donny

Gilman.
21. Northern Nevada Development Authority (NNDA) (appointed official seat) – Lara Mather.
22. Northern Nevada Transportation Management Association – Lara Mather.
23. Storey County Wildlife Advisory Board – Rob DuFresne, Greg Hess Sr., Greg “Bum” Hess, Casey

Kelly, and Todd Hess.
24. Virginia City Tourism Commission: Paul Hoyle, hotel representative; (still reviewing applications

for the “at-large” representative) 1-year term*; Gretchen Lavach, business district merchant
representative, 1-year term*; A. Perry, motel representative; and Jay Carmona Clay Mitchell,
county commission representative.

Notes: 
1. Friends of Storey County Senior Center, a non-profit 501(C)(3), will accompany and provide grant assistance

and other support to Storey County Senior Services.

2. Before a County Manager position was created in Storey County, the board members would oversee certain
departments of the county directly. This oversight may no longer be necessary with a County Manager now
overseeing all appointed departments, and, therefore, a board member representative for Public Works is not
assigned at this time. Also, the Fire District is overseen by the Fire District Chief, and that appointed Chief is
overseen by the Fire District Board. Therefore, the same applies to the Fire District list.

3. *Two seats will be considered for a 1-year term for the purpose of creating staggered board terms. These
positions will be considered by the Storey County Commissioners at the first board meeting in 2025 for
appointment to 2-year terms.



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to
serve a term representing Precincts 3 & 6 Lockwood and River Districts, on the Storey
County Planning Commission.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I
[commissioner] motion to appoint James Umbach to represent Precincts 3 & 6 Lockwood
and River Districts on the Storey County Planning Commission.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Pursuant to Storey County Code 2.12 and NRS, the term of a planning
commissioner is four years. The previous Precincts 3 & 6 planning commissioner had to
resign as they successfully were elected to the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners.   This position will replace the previous person and will serve the
remaining appointment time.  This position appointment will expire on December 31,
2027.

• The planning commissioner vacancy was posted according to policy and NRS. One letter
of interest was received.  Based on qualifications and experiences, staff recommends the
appointment of Jim Umbach to fulfill the remaining time for the Precincts 3 & 6
Lockwood and River Districts planning commissioner position, expiring on December
31, 2027.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      34



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued









Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to
serve a term representing Precinct 5 Virginia City Highlands District, on the Storey
County Planning Commission.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I
[commissioner] motion to appoint Carlos Negrete to represent Precinct 5 Virginia City
Highlands District on the Storey County Planning Commission.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Pursuant to Storey County Code 2.12 and NRS, the term of a planning
commissioner is four years. The previous Precinct 5 planning commissioner had to resign
due to leaving the area and Carlos Negrete fulfilled the remaining time of the previous
planning commissioner’s term.  This position appointment will expire on December 31,
2028.  The planning commissioner vacancy was posted according to policy and NRS.
One letter of interest was received.  Based on qualifications and experience, staff
recommends the appointment of Carlos Negrete to the Virginia City Highlands District
Precinct 5 planning commissioner position, expiring on December 31, 2028.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

      35



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued







Planning Commissioner Vacancies 
Storey County Precinct 5 Letter of Interest for Reappointment 

November 29, 2024 

Storey County Planning Commissioner, 

Please accept this Letter of Interest for reappointment with regards to the Precinct 5 
Highlands District position that I currently hold for the above listed precinct.   

It is with the above mentioned position that I would like to be considered for 
reappointment so that I can continue to assist the community that my wife and I 
reside in.  

Respectfully, 

Carlos Negrete 
360 Panamint Road 
VC Highlands, NV 89521 
(775) 221-0462



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to
serve a term representing Precinct 1 Virginia City District, on the Storey County Planning
Commission.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I
[commissioner] motion to appoint Alexia Sober to represent Precinct 1 Virginia City
District and on the Storey County Planning Commission.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Pursuant to Storey County Code 2.12 and NRS, the term of a planning
commissioner is four years.  Alexia Sober previously held this position and successfully
fulfilled the duties of a Planning Commissioner.  This position appointment will expire
on December 31, 2028.

•
• The planning commissioner vacancy was posted according to policy and NRS.  One letter

of interest was received.  Based on qualifications and experience, staff recommends the
appointment of Alexia Sober to be the Precinct 1 Virginia City Planning Commissioner,
expiring on December 31, 2028.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      36



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued





Subject: Interest in Continuing Service as Storey County Planning Commissioner 

Dear Storey County Commissioners and Staff, 

I hope this message finds you well. I am writing to express my interest in continuing my 
service as a Planning Commissioner for Storey County, Nevada, for another term. It has 
been a privilege to contribute to the planning and development of our community, and I am 
eager to build on the work we have accomplished together. 

Please let me know if there are any additional steps or materials needed to facilitate this 
process. 

Thank you for your consideration, and I look forward to your response. 

Best regards, 
Alexia Sober 
sober@comstockinc.com 
775-600-5915

mailto:sober@comstockinc.com


Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to
serve the remainder of a term for County At Large position on the Storey County
Planning Commission.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I
[commissioner] motion to appoint Rachel Holderread to fulfill the term of County At
Large position on the  Storey County Planning Commission.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Pursuant to Storey County Code 2.12 and NRS, the term of a planning
commissioner is four years. The previous At Large planning commissioner resigned due
to personal reasons.  This position will replace the previous person and will serve the
remaining appointment time.  This position appointment will expire on December 31,
2027.

• The planning commissioner vacancy was posted according to policy and NRS. Three
letters of interest were received.  Applicants show an impressive background and their
interest in serving our community is appreciated. Based on qualifications and
experiences, staff recommends the appointment of Rachel Holderread to fulfill the
remaining time for the County At Large planning commissioner position, expiring on
December 31, 2027.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      37



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



























Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to
serve a term representing the County At Large position on the Storey County Planning
Commission.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I
[commissioner] motion to appoint Kristen Brown to represent the County At Large
position on the Storey County Planning Commission.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Pursuant to Storey County Code 2.12 and NRS, the term of a planning
commissioner is four years. This position is open because of the previous holder of this
position being re-assigned to represent the Precincts 3 & 6 Lockwood/River Districts.
This position appointment will expire on December 31, 2028.

• The planning commissioner vacancy was posted according to policy and NRS.   County
staff received three letters of interest for the two At Large positions available.  All
applicants show an impressive background and their interest in serving our community is
appreciated. Based on qualifications and experiences, staff recommends the appointment
of Kristen Brown to represent the County At Large position on the planning
commissioner position, expiring on December 31, 2028.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      38



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued





























Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
• A. A.C. Moate Industries, Inc – Contractor / 180 Gentry Way ~ Reno, NV
• B. ARCO DB Companies, Inc. - Contractor / 325 S. Alabama St. Ste 200 ~ Indianapolis,

IN
• C. Bighorn Roofing LTD – Contractor / 2090 Rabbit Dr. ~ Washoe Valley, NV
• D. Budget Blinds of Reno – Out of County / 6550 Longley Ln. #115 ~ Reno, NV
• E. Deluxe Step and Rail Inc. – Contractor / 1995 Tampa St. ~ Reno, NV
• F. Diamond G Construction Inc. – Contractor / 340 W. Wickenburg Way Ste. A34 ~

Wickenburg, AZ
• G. Highline Electric LLC – Contractor / 8030 Monterey Shores Dr. ~ Reno, NV
• H. Mason Valley Janitorial – Out of County / 8 Van Fleet Dr. ~ Yerington, NV
• I. NGK Electronics USA, Inc. – Out of County / 5975 Home Gardens Dr. ~ Reno, NV
• J. Precision Firearms Training – Home Based / 4682 Hanaupah Rd. ~ Reno, NV
• K. Pure Water Systems of NV – Contractor / 245 Vine St. ~ Reno, NV
• L. SOKAB LLC – Home Based / 1700 Main St. ~ Gold Hill, NV
• M. WSP USA INC – Professional / 4139Oregon Pike ~ Ephrata, PA

• Recommended motion: Approval

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 7758470966

• Staff Summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the

• Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

     39



• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office December 23, 2024 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the January 7, 2025 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

SECOND READINGS: 

A. A.C. Moate Industries, Inc – Contractor / 180 Gentry Way ~ Reno, NV 

B. ARCO DB Companies, Inc. - Contractor / 325 S. Alabama St. Ste 200 ~ Indianapolis, IN

C. Bighorn Roofing LTD – Contractor / 2090 Rabbit Dr. ~ Washoe Valley, NV

D. Budget Blinds of Reno – Out of County / 6550 Longley Ln. #115 ~ Reno, NV

E. Deluxe Step and Rail Inc. – Contractor / 1995 Tampa St. ~ Reno, NV

F. Diamond G Construction Inc. – Contractor / 340 W. Wickenburg Way Ste. A34 ~ Wickenburg, AZ

G. Highline Electric LLC – Contractor / 8030 Monterey Shores Dr. ~ Reno, NV

H. Mason Valley Janitorial – Out of County / 8 Van Fleet Dr. ~ Yerington, NV

I. NGK Electronics USA, Inc. – Out of County / 5975 Home Gardens Dr. ~ Reno, NV

J. Precision Firearms Training – Home Based / 4682 Hanaupah Rd. ~ Reno, NV

K. Pure Water Systems of NV – Contractor / 245 Vine St. ~ Reno, NV

L. SOKAB LLC – Home Based / 1700 Main St. ~ Gold Hill, NV

M. WSP USA INC – Professional / 4139Oregon Pike ~ Ephrata, PA

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  


	BOCC Meeting - Agenda - 1-7-2025 (12-31-2024 10 37 44 AM)
	BOCC Meeting - Meeting Packet - 1-7-2025 (12-31-2024 11 29 09 AM).pdf
	Election of Chairman to the Storey County Board of Commissioners for the term of one year in compliance with NRS 244.070 and County Code 2.04.008.
	Election of Vice-Chairman to the Storey County Board of Commissioners for the term of one year in compliance with NRS 244.070 and County Code 2.04.008.
	Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the January 7, 2025, meeting.
	For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A.	Apollo Mechanical Contractors– General / 2400 Peru Dr. ~ McCarran, NV
B.	Erthos Manufacturing LLC – Out of County / 740 S. Mill Ave. Ste. 210 ~ Tempe, AZ
C.	Erthos Partner Services LL
	24-25 Property Tax bill correction in the amount of ($153.21) for parcel 3-431-02.  Concrete was picked up during the 2024-25 reappraisal and it is personal property non taxable pavers.  Resulting in a reduction in taxes of $153.21.
	Approval of claims in the amount of $19,747,408.93.
	Resolution No. 25-756 honoring retired Storey County Commissioner Lance Gilman for his 12 years of service to the residents and businesses of Storey County.
	Badge pinning ceremony for Battalion Chief Bryce Montoya and Fire Captain Matt Dixon, after successfully completing their promotional probationary period.
	Public hearing to consider public comments on proposed lease of that portion of Piper's Opera House known as the Old Corner Bar to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC for a monthly rental amount of $1,800.00 until December 31, 2025, with a two-year renewal term. Chan
	Consideration and possible action to approve a revised lease for the Old Corner Bar located in Piper’s Opera House with Ponderosa Saloon LLC. The proposed revision includes the removal of the electrical and water payments requirement in Section 3.02, whil
	Consideration and possible approval to rescind the July 18, 2023, approved agreement between Storey County and Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old Corner Bar) pertaining to monthly payments of back utility payments.
	Consideration and possible action to approve a refund of electrical and water payments, past and current made by Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old Corner Bar) with the updated lease and rescinding of the past due agreement in the amount of $11,077.53.
	Consideration and possible approval of unbudgeted grant-funded, Health Community Worker Position for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year.
	Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 24-755, a resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year and superseding prior
	Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to sign and approve the cost reimbursement agreement between Storey County and the Bureau of Land Management - Carson City District Office (BLM) for the processing of the right-of-way application
	Consideration and possible approval to make a conditional offer to purchase the property located at 300 Italy Drive in McCarren Nevada, APN 005-091-67, based upon the appraisal dated November 13, 2024, by Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA Certified General Apprai
	Discussion and possible approval to utilize available funds from the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer that were not budgeted for in the FY 2024 budget, but outlined in the district CIP, not to exceed $300,000.
	Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout Storey County.
	Possible acceptance of a bid for replacement of fuel tanks and pumps at 100 Toll Road and 1705 Peru Drive, from LA Perks Petroleum, in the amount of $686,007.00.  The acceptance of this bid will allow staff to issue a Notice of Intent to Award to the appa
	For Consideration and possible approval of acceptance of the 2024 Winter Grant round from the Nevada State Off Highway Vehicles Commission for the grant amount of $28,065.78 for the Storey County Sheriff's Office, Off Highway Vehicle Operations Unit.
	For Consideration and possible approval of receipt of a donation for the STorey County Sheriff's Office for the purchase of a traffic unit for patrol, emergency response and community outreach.
	Consideration and possible approval authorizing the County Manager to sign and approve an amendment to an existing 2024-2025 contract between Storey County and Silver State Government Relations for lobbying and government affairs services during the Nevad
	Consideration and possible authorization for the County Manager to sign and approve a contract from 01/07/25 through 12/31/25 between Storey County and Sam Shad Productions producing and airing with Nevada Newsmakers a series of television commercials, we
	Possible approval amending the list of county appointments to serve on state, county, and regional boards and committees, and filling vacancies on the Virginia City Tourism Commission for the 2025 calendar year.
	Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to serve a term representing Precincts 3 & 6 Lockwood and River Districts, on the Storey County Planning Commission.
	Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to serve a term representing Precinct 5 Virginia City Highlands District, on the Storey County Planning Commission.
	Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to serve a term representing Precinct 1 Virginia City District, on the Storey County Planning Commission.
	Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to serve the remainder of a term for County At Large position on the Storey County Planning Commission.
	Consideration of letters of interest for appointment of a planning commissioner to serve a term representing the County At Large position on the Storey County Planning Commission.
	For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
A.	A.C. Moate Industries, Inc – Contractor / 180 Gentry Way ~ Reno, NV
B.	ARCO DB Companies, Inc. - Contractor / 325 S. Alabama St. Ste 200 ~ Indianapolis, IN
C.	Bighorn Roofi




